The Single Plan for Student Achievement

School: Lawndale High School
CDS Code: 19---64352---1934926

District: Centinela Valley Union High School District

Principal: Paula Hart Rodas, Ed.D.

Revision Date: May 18, 2016

The Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is a plan of actions to raise the academic performance of all students. California Education Code sections 41507, 41572, and 64001 and the federal Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) require each school to consolidate all school plans for programs funded through the ConApp and ESEA Program Improvement into the SPSA.

For additional information on school programs and how you may become involved locally, please contact the following person:

Contact Person: Yaquelin Amador
Position: SSC Chairperson
Phone Number: (310) 263--3102

Address: 14901 South Inglewood Avenue

Lawndale, CA 90260

E-mail Address: rodasp@centinela.k12.ca.us

The District Governing Board approved this revision of the SPSA on August 9, 2016.

Table of Contents

School Vision and Mission	4
School Profile	5
Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components	6
Data Analysis	6
Surveys	6
Classroom Observations	6
Analysis of Current Instructional Program	7
Description of Barriers and Related School Goals	10
School and Student Performance Data	12
CAASPP Results (All Students)	12
CAASPP Results (Hispanic or Latino of Any Race)	14
CAASPP Results (White)	16
CAASPP Results (Economically Disadvantaged)	18
CAASPP Results (Students w/ Disabilities)	20
CAASPP Results (English Learner)	22
CELDT (Annual Assessment) Results	24
CELDT (All Assessment) Results	25
Title III Accountability (School Data)	26
Title III Accountability (District Data)	27
2014-15 Enrollment	28
Suspension and Expulsion	29
AP Scores	30
SAT Scores	31
Graduation and Dropout Rate (Four Year Cohort Rate)	32
NCLB Core and Compliant Classes	33
Planned Improvements in Student Performance	34
School Goal #1	34
School Goal #2	41
School Goal #3	47
Centralized Services for Planned Improvements in Student Performance	52
Centralized Service Goal #1	52
Centralized Service Goal #2	55
Centralized Service Goal #3	56
Summary of Expenditures in this Plan	58

59
60
61
62
63
64
68
68
69
70

School Vision and Mission

Lawndale High School's Vision and Mission Statements

CENTINELA VALLEY UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

The mission of the CVUHSD is to ensure the academic success of all students by implementing school to career academies to address all learning needs and choices, reflecting the industry careers in the South Bay.

The CVUHSD Vision Statement

The Centinela Valley Union High School District believes that all students can learn, and expects each and every student to make continuous progress toward meeting and exceeding the California State Standards. Our success as educators can only be measured by the success of our students and that success must and will be the driving force behind everything we do.

To that end, the Centinela Valley Union High School District believes that the following tenets are necessary in order for all our students to be successful.

- 1. It is not enough for us to teach and assume that our students have learned. Learning will be continuously assessed in order to evaluate the success of our teaching.
- 2. We will never blame students. Their success is our responsibility. When our students fail, we fail. Policies and practices of the District and its' employees will foster and never be a hindrance to student success. These policies and practices include, but are not limited to Instruction, Grading, Placement, Curriculum and Discipline.
- 3. All students have the right to access the most rigorous curriculum, and when appropriate, will be given any necessary support to be successful in the most advanced courses.
- 4. Our responsibility goes beyond the earning of a high school diploma. We will advance a curriculum that provides both academic and career-technical skills so that students have the choice to enter and be successful in a four-year university and/or obtain an industry job from a variety of career pathways.

The CVUHSD Graduate Profile

The graduate profile was developed in collaboration with partners from industry, post-secondary, the community, as well as students, parents, school staff and administration, and district leadership. Each course and program works toward alignment with it, supporting each CVUHSD student in matching this profile upon graduation:

- College & Career Ready Individuals
- o Graduates will develop and manage a clearly articulated post secondary plan that is aligned with their academic and/or career goals and personal passions.
- Effective Communicators
- o Graduates will be able to express thoughts and articulate ideas through verbal, non-verbal, written, and technological means.
- Ethical Leaders
- o Graduates will demonstrate ethical leadership through effective decision-making and self-management by understanding their personal strengths and weaknesses.
- Independent & Collaborative Critical Thinkers & Problem Solvers
- o Graduates will exercise critical thinking skills to independently and collaboratively address the nature of a problem and propose creative solutions.
- Socially Aware & Responsive Community Members
- o Graduates will act as productive citizens who serve in the community to improve the quality of life for their local, national, and global community.

Lawndale High School Mission Statement

Lawndale High School's mission is to graduate all students with high levels of critical thinking and interpersonal skills. Through diverse, culturally-relevant, and research-based instructional practices graduates will be empowered to take ownership of their environment, be positive contributors and global citizens.

Lawndale High School Vision Statement

Lawndale cultivates a positive learning environment where each student is confident and self-sufficient in their pursuit of post-secondary success at an institute of higher learning, in a career and life.

School Profile

During the 2014-15 school year, Lawndale High School served 2,258 students in grades 9--12. Student enrollment included 226 (10%) receiving special education services, 226 (10%) qualifying for English learner support, and 2,066 (91.5%) qualifying for free or reduced---price meals. Lawndale High School offers a comprehensive standards--based curriculum, preparing students for their postsecondary education opportunities and entrance into the workforce. Over the past three years, Lawndale High has steadily increased its API standings in both state and similar schools comparisons. Parents are encouraged to get involved in Lawndale High School's learning community by volunteering their time, attending school events, or sharing in the decision-making process.

Parent representation is an integral component of the School Site Council, English Learner Advisory Council, Title I Parent Advisory Committee, and Western Association of Schools and Colleges Committee (WASC). Each of these groups is responsible for leading and evaluating the school's progress to provide a safe and effective learning environment. During the 2003-2004 school year, Lawndale had already begun to experience API growth that would lead to its recognition as a 2009 California Distinguished School. Other awards received over the past several years include: Title One Academic Achievement Award, California Business for Excellence in Education Award, ED Equity Award, Diamond Award for Counseling, Silver Medal School Award for U.S. News and World Report, and National Center for Urban School Transformation Excellence in Education Award. Receiving these awards have boosted the image of Lawndale High School in the community and given LHS students and staff a greatly increased sense of pride for all of the school's hard work and accomplishments.

Title I Schoolwide Program:

Lawndale High School operates a Title I School Wide Program. The School Site Council first completed the schoolwide needs assessment and submission of Schoolwide status in July of 2012 and has been annually approved since then.

A schoolwide program is a comprehensive reform strategy designed to upgrade the entire educational program in a Title I school; its primary goal is to ensure that all students, particularly those who are low-achieving, demonstrate proficient and advanced levels of achievement on State academic achievement standards. This schoolwide reform strategy requires that a school--

- Conduct a comprehensive needs assessment;
- Identify and commit to specific goals and strategies that address those needs;
- Create a comprehensive plan; and
- Conduct an annual review of the effectiveness of the schoolwide program and revise the plan as necessary.

Adopting this strategy should result in an ongoing, comprehensive plan for school improvement that is owned by the entire school community and tailored to its unique needs.

Whereas Title I targeted assistance programs only provide educational services to identified individual students, schoolwide programs allow staff in schools with high concentrations of students from low-income families to redesign their entire educational program to serve all students. The emphasis in schoolwide program schools is on serving all students, improving all structures that support student learning, and combining all resources, as allowed, to achieve a common goal. Schoolwide programs maximize the impact of Title I.

A growing body of evidence shows that it is possible to create schools where all students achieve to high standards, even when most students in the school are poor or disadvantaged. These schools share common characteristics, including:

- A clear focus;
- High expectations for students and staff;
- An environment focused on learning;
- Strong leadership;
- Curriculum, instruction, and assessments aligned with standards;
- High-quality professional development;
- A collaborative spirit and collaborative structures;
- Meaningful parental involvement; and
- A commitment to continuous review and improvement.

These characteristics are most likely to produce effective schools when they are integrated together into a schoolwide framework. The Title I schoolwide process supports the creation of high-performing schools by encouraging schools to make significant, even radical, changes in how they do business, and providing them with a comprehensive process for doing so. Developing and implementing a high-quality schoolwide program is a systemic, effective strategy for increasing the academic achievement of all

students.

The schoolwide authority also reflects the following fundamental principles of Title I, as amended by the NCLB:

- Accountability for results. In a schoolwide program, accountability for results is shared throughout the school. All students are
 expected to meet the State's challenging standards, and students who experience difficulty mastering those standards are
 provided timely, effective, additional assistance. Teachers use information about student performance and share ways that
 instruction can be improved to meet a wide range of student needs. The school keeps parents informed of the achievement of
 individual students, and of the progress of the school in meeting its goals.
- Research-based practices. Schoolwide programs operate according to a plan that contains proven, research-based strategies designed to facilitate schoolwide reform and improvement. Professional development activities are based on practices proven to be successful in helping teachers improve the quality of their instruction.
- School and community engagement. Staff in schoolwide programs engage parents and the community in their work as planners, participants, and decision makers in the operation of the school. This collaboration is based on a shared vision of the school's values and overall mission. These partnerships strengthen the school's ability to meet the needs of all students and improve the school.

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components

Data Analysis

Please refer to the School and Student Performance Data section where an analysis is provided.

Surveys

This section provides a description of surveys (i.e., Student, Parent, Teacher) used during the school-year, and a summary of results from the survey(s).

Parents' input/feedback was given during School Site Council and English Learners Advisory Committee meetings. Title I needs assessment surveys were also sent out to all parents regarding categorical and school programs.

Classroom Observations

This section provides a description of types and frequency of classroom observations conducted during the school-year and a summary of findings.

Establish opportunities for Focus-walk staff development whereby peer observation is the norm for teachers to observe teachers in the classroom. The focus of these observations will be to solidify the use of Direct Interactive Instruction techniques to improve instruction and academic success.

Analysis of Current Instructional Program

The following statements are derived from the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of 1965 and Essential Program Components (EPCs). In conjunction with the needs assessments, these categories may be used to discuss and develop critical findings that characterize current instructional practice for numerically significant subgroups as well as individual students who are:

- Not meeting performance goals
- Meeting performance goals
- Exceeding performance goals

Discussion of each of these statements should result in succinct and focused findings based on verifiable facts. Avoid vague or general descriptions. Each successive school plan should examine the status of these findings and note progress made. Special consideration should be given to any practices, policies, or procedures found to be noncompliant through ongoing monitoring of categorical programs.

Standards, Assessment, and Accountability

1. Use of state and local assessments to modify instruction and improve student achievement (ESEA)

SBAC Interim assessments, course teams common formative, and course teams common summative assessments will be used to inform staff, students and parents about student progress with meeting state standards. Student academic achievement data will be reviewed during weekly teacher collaboration to better inform instruction and learning.

2. Use of data to monitor student progress on curriculum-embedded assessments and modify instruction (EPC)

Teachers meet during weekly collaboration to discuss student achievement data using a data analysis protocol tool to review student data on multiple sources of assessments to better inform teaching and learning within course teams and in departments.

Staffing and Professional Development

3. Status of meeting requirements for highly qualified staff (ESEA)

The school is committed to providing all students with highly qualified teachers in order to ensure all students have access to standards based curriculum. In addition, a number of staff positions are used to support student learning across the campus. Our staff includes Instructional Coaches in math, ELA, Science and ELD that supports our course content areas. Instead of a Dean of Students, we have two Intervention Specialists that focus on attendance, PBIS, and response to intervention and instruction (RTII). LWHS also employs an ELD coordinator, Link Krew coordinator, AVID coordinator, Title I coordinator, four Academy coordinators, and a WASC coordinator. Our AVID program oversees expansive peer and adult tutoring and employs a diverse staff from a variety of subject areas. AVID teachers and coordinators undergo ongoing training and have access to a rich curriculum. Teachers took a needs assessment survey at the beginning of the school year and those results have helped our Instructional Coaches design monthly professional development for our teachers through Professional Learning Opportunities (PLO's). The expansion of technology in the form of computer labs and laptop carts have provided access to technology. Teachers can reserve computer lab space or laptops carts using Outlook Rooms so teachers are aware of where to pick up and return technology.

4. Sufficiency of credentialed teachers and teacher professional development (e.g., access to instructional materials training on SBE-adopted instructional materials) (EPC)

Professional development is an ongoing process that starts with summer conferences, school year conferences, academy retreats, district workshops, on-site workshops and continues throughout the school year with weekly faculty meetings and PLC departmental collaborations. The school and district offer many different types of professional development for teacher growth. The focus of professional development has been built around training teachers in Common Core, incorporating literacy across the curriculum for all the subjects, infusing Linked Learning, cross curriculum planning (mapping), Direct Interactive Instruction (DII), AVID strategies, effective academic and behavioral interventions, formative assessments, and using the Next Generation Science Standards for the Science Department. The 4x4 block scheduling incorporated into our bell schedule (which will continue into the 2016-2017 school year) is building the PLC environment. Adaptive Schools training has been at the center of building a collaborative work environment. RTI and PBIS have also been integrated to address the academic and social emotional needs of all our students Digital Libraries are available to all students and staff members (i.e. EBSCO, Axis 360, and Overdrive) as additional learning resources. For some subject areas, online textbooks have also been utilized. Training on the different programs such as Activate, Illuminate, HERO, Google Docs, and Turn It In also continue to be available for the teachers. Invitations for lunchtime and after school trainings with our Math Instructional Coach/Math Teacher and ELA Instructional Coach are e-mailed to the staff on an ongoing basis.

5. Alignment of staff development to content standards, assessed student performance, and professional needs (ESEA)

Our school has implemented staff professional development on topics such as the effective use of technology, real world lesson planning, Common Core requirements, AVID training, innovation, and current research based instructional strategies. Professional development for teachers to analyze data and learn instructional strategies has become a major goal of teachers on the campus which has led to valuable discussions and brainstorming during several collaborative sessions. Many of the certificated staff have also taken advantage of opportunities to create and implement cross- curricular lessons that span multiple disciplines. Teachers use Illuminate to deliver common formative and summative assessments. Having common assessments allow course teams to analyze student performance data and decide how to modify instruction so all students are able to reach mastery.

6. Ongoing instructional assistance and support for teachers (e.g., use of content experts and instructional coaches) (EPC)

We have a full time site-based Literacy Coach, Math Coach, and a Technology Trainer; LHS shares the Technology Coach and Science Coach with the other schools is CVUHSD. These Instructional Coaches observe and support teachers through demonstration lessons, co-planning and co-teaching, and by providing voluntary district-wide Professional Learning Opportunities during the lunch period. Our site based Math and Literacy Coaches have also taken the lead, in conjunction with administrative guidance, to coordinate the bimonthly site-based Professional Learning Opportunities (PLO) that occur in the first 30 minutes of our weekly Monday collaborative time. During each PLO, teachers and other staff members, including administrators, provide professional learning on a variety of topics. The PLO topics are selected from a survey of staff needs, as well as from feedback after each PLO session.

7. Teacher collaboration by grade level (kindergarten through grade eight [K–8]) and department (grades nine through twelve) (EPC)

LWHS has implemented a late start Monday for collaboration opportunities for all departments. During collaborations, departments compare and analyze data from common assessments. Once data is collected and analyzed departments may wish to address any significant difficulties based upon those assessments. The data collected is used to spiral in new information or use small group instruction to adjust the curriculum or instructional practices that ensure more students are attaining mastery of academic standards. Teachers will also be able to use the data to inform their own instructional strategies/practices.

Teaching and Learning

8. Alignment of curriculum, instruction, and materials to content and performance standards (ESEA)

There are course leads for each content area who are responsible for updating pacing plans, common formative assessments, common summative assessments, and other course specific resources. The course leads are also responsible for maintaining the alignment to state and district standards, and CCSS. This past summer, math teachers, course leads, department chairpersons, and instructional coaches met over four days to revise and update curriculum for Algebra 1, Geometry, Algebra 2, Statistics, and Precalculus. Additionally, our course leads are in charge of leading course teams within the math department. These course teams continue to revise and update the curriculum as needed.

Availability of standards-based instructional materials appropriate to all student groups (ESEA)

The Governing Board recognizes that student learning is enhanced when students have access to high-quality textbooks, equipment and other instructional materials for each of the subjects they are studying. The school staff feels that we are just beginning to see the effects of a changing financial climate. Math departments district wide are currently in the process of adopting new textbooks for the upcoming school year. Technology needs are always changing and the school works hard to keep up with the changes. Wi-Fi is installed in every classroom. Chromebook Carts have been purchased by the district and are being used with a great deal of regularity in many classrooms. The Media Center computer lab is used daily along with the main area where laptops are available for students to check out and use.

10. Use of SBE-adopted and standards-aligned instructional materials, including intervention materials, and for high school students, access to standards-aligned core courses (EPC)

Students in need of academic intervention and support are placed in English and/or Math intervention classes, provided tutoring, and offered online credit recovery classes. In addition, the Lawndale counseling department guides students to appropriate adult school placement in order to recover credits to complete the high school program.

Opportunity and Equal Educational Access

11. Services provided by the regular program that enable underperforming students to meet standards (ESEA)

Additionally, the AVID program help support students in meeting all the requirements of graduation upon completion of the high school program. AVID not only supports students in their college quest, but also closely monitors students' grades and works to ensure that all students are on track for graduation. The LWHS career academies also have advisors that serve over each grade level. These advisors meet with students individually, provide tutoring, and analyze data to monitor student progress.

12. Research-based educational practices to raise student achievement

Our school has implemented staff professional development on topics such as the effective use of technology, real world lesson planning, Common Core requirements, AVID training, innovation, and current research based instructional strategies. Professional development for teachers to analyze data and learn instructional strategies has become a major goal of teachers on the campus which has led to valuable discussions and brainstorming during several collaborative sessions. Many of the certificated staff have also taken advantage of opportunities to create and implement cross- curricular lessons that span multiple disciplines. Teachers use Illuminate to deliver common formative and summative assessments. Having common assessments allow course teams to analyze student performance data and decide how to modify instruction so all students are able to reach mastery.

Parental Involvement

13. Resources available from family, school, district, and community to assist under-achieving students (ESEA)

Lawndale High School is dedicated to involving family, business, industry, and community resources in the learning process of our students. We now have a full-time Community Liaison on site whose outreach to parents has been critical in getting families more involved in the opportunities we have available for them such as PIQE, Family Nights in some departments, Academy Family Nights, and other events that are parent and community centered. In addition to that we have a Title I & Parent Involvement Specialist at the district office who works extensively with our site to enhance parent involvement and participation. Lawndale has also worked hard to build relationships with the community to meet the needs of all our students. Community resources available on campus are varied and abundant, from guest speakers who bring their real-world industry expertise, to our partnerships with Centinela Youth Services and Richstone which support our students emotional and mental health. Our academies, through their structure, are great in providing in depth look into what college and careers look like after high school. Access to college and career fairs (on campus, at sister schools, and off school grounds) also add to students' preparedness and parent awareness.

14. Involvement of parents, community representatives, classroom teachers, other school personnel, and students in secondary schools, in the planning, implementation, and evaluation of ConApp programs (5 California Code of Regulations 3932)

Parents can get involved by volunteering and attending meetings with our governing boards such as SSC, English Learner Advisory Committee (ELAC), and Parent Advisory Committee. At the district level parents and students volunteer to be involved with the District Site Leadership Team and LCAP Advisory Board Meetings. The district and the school sites publicize through and Blackboard connect messages asking for parents to participate. Most meetings are open unless there a planning meeting were specific input is required.

We currently do not have a PTA/PTO but would like to start one in the near future with the assistance of our district Title I & Parent Involvement Specialist. We have many parents interested in volunteering at the school site and need help organizing and mobilizing them to maximize time.

Funding

15. Services provided by categorical funds that enable underperforming students to meet standards (ESEA)

LWHS operates a Title I School Wide Program. A schoolwide program is a comprehensive reform strategy focused on upgrading the entire educational program. LWHS has since 2012 conducted an annual needs assessment and submission of Schoolwide status and has been annually approved. The primary goal is to ensure that all below proficient students are supported so that the can demonstrate proficient and advanced levels of achievement on State academic achievement standards. Read180, ELA Success and ALEKS are currently being utilized for the academic improvement.

16. Fiscal support (EPC)

There is correlation of the allocation of time/fiscal/personnel/material resources to the implementation, monitoring, and accomplishing of the Schoolwide Learner Outcomes, the Single Plan for Student Achievement, and the LCAP. The district board meeting, School Site Council meetings, LWHS school site representative, and Title I ensure that the resources are being utilized in order to address school priorities. These are outlined in the SPSA which allocates funding based on these goals.

Description of Barriers and Related School Goals

Lawndale's Description of Barriers:

While reviewing overall graduation rates with A-G completion rates, Lawndale High School leadership team noted a discrepancy between the high graduation rate (93.7%) and a completion rate of college a-g requirements was 45%. Most of our seniors (76%) are enrolled in a-g classes. We realized that maybe not all of our students are interested in pursuing a 4-year university upon graduating or may not have the resources to financially support entering college right after high school, so it has become necessary to broaden

our services to prepare all students to pursue postsecondary opportunities, college and career. Data collection of student academic performance is an ongoing process and continues throughout the year. Review and discussion takes place at monthly Leadership Team meetings and during our weekly department collaborations on Monday's.

Existing factors that will support school improvement:

Increase awareness and training for restorative practices and community building for students, staff and parents.

Continue work in course teams to align site specific CFS's, District CSA's and lab assessments with CCSS/NGSS in all subject areas. Genuine, non-evaluative observation of colleagues for the purpose of integrating effective instructional strategies through learning ...

Increase student performance on all academic indicators, including providing targeted interventions with instructional support within the regular classroom setting in a timely manner.

Further investigate and resolve student perception data results that indicated 23% of the students felt that the school cared about them as a person and 33% agreed that there is at least one adult at school that I can talk to about school or personal problems Further development through the PLCs or other means of the timely use of data analysis, formative and summative, to impact instructional decisions and to improve students learning outcomes and demonstration of depth of knowledge at a high level.

LWHS identified the following three critical needs to be addressed in the Action Plan:

Increase student academic achievement in mathematics and English while improving problem solving and critical thinking skills. Increase A-G completion rates to help students achieve readiness or college and/or career.

Create an environment that fosters connection, support and engagement with all students. Improve the culture of the school in regards to overall supports and engagement for socio-emotional and behavioral needs.

School wide Critical Areas for Follow-up from WASC 2016 Self-Study

- 1. LWHS administration and instructional staff need to fully develop and implement systematic analysis of all data, including formative and summative data, to determine the effectiveness of instructional decisions, pathways and programs in order to improve all students learning outcomes, such as SBAC, UC/CSU a-g completion rate, graduation rate, grades, etc.
- 2. LWHS administration and instructional staff need to identify and/or further develop effective schoolwide instructional strategies to increase academic indicators, to ensure that all students are achieving at high academic levels, and to ensure their personal learning needs are addressed.
- 3. LWHS Administration, staff and stakeholders need to ensure that all students' personal and academic needs are addressed with embedded systems of support.
- 4. LWHS administration and instructional staff need to increase student performance on all academic indicators through not only providing intervention classes but also by including proactive and timely targeted interventions with instructional support within the instructional setting and refinement of an intervention model, such as RTI.
- 5. LWHS administration and staff need in conjunction with stakeholders to clearly define the data points to measure accomplishment of the adopted SLOs.

CAASPP Results (All Students)

English Language Arts/Literacy

Overall Achievement											
Grade Level # of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students Tested # of Students Tested # of Students Tested # of Students With Scores Mean Scale Standard Stand								Standard Not Met			
Grade 11	560	548	97.9	530	2579.3	13	38	28	18		
All Grades	560	548	97.9	530		13	38	28	18		

Grade Level		READING			WRITING			LISTENING			RESEARCH/INQUIRY		
	Demonstrating understanding of literary & non-fictional texts		Producing clear and purposeful writing			Demonstrating effective communication skills			Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information				
	Above Standard	At or Near Standard	Below Standard	Above Standard	At or Near Standard	Below Standard	Above Standard	At or Near Standard	Below Standard	Above Standard	At or Near Standard	Below Standard	
Grade 11	25	55	18	19	55	21	12	68	17	27	56	14	
All Grades	25	55	18	19	55	21	12	68	17	27	56	14	

- 1. About 51% of our juniors met or exceeded standard on the English Language Arts test for CAASPP.
- 2. 21% or less of our juniors were below standard in reading, writing, listening, and research/inquiry on the English Language Arts test for CAASPP.
- 3. More than 70% of our juniors were at/near or above standard on the reading, writing. listening, and research/inquiry on the English Language Arts test for CAASPP.

CAASPP Results (All Students)

Mathematics

	Overall Achievement											
Grade Level	# of Students Enrolled	# of Students Tested	% of Enrolled Students Tested	# of Students With Scores	Mean Scale Score	Standard Exceeded	Standard Met	Standard Nearly Met	Standard Not Met			
Grade 11	560	544	97.1	501	2523.9	3	13	23	52			
All Grades	560	544	97.1	501		3	13	23	52			

		CONCEPTS & PROCEDURES			DBLEM SOLVIN LING/DATA AN		COMMUNICATING REASONING			
Grade Level	Applying m	athematical co	ncepts and		riate tools and world and mat problems	_	Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions			
	1.0010		Below Standard	Above Standard	At or Near Standard	Below Standard	Above Standard	At or Near Standard	Below Standard	
Grade 11	11	33	53	5	47	43	6	55	36	
All Grades	11	33	53	5	47	43	6	55	36	

- 1. Half of our juniors did not meet standard on the math test for CAASPP.
- 2. About 60% of of our juniors were at/near or above standard in communicating reasoning on the math test for CAASPP.
- 3. About 45% of our juniors were at/near or above standard in concepts and procedures on the math test for CAASPP.

CAASPP Results (Hispanic or Latino of Any Race)

Data for this subgroup has been suppressed by CDE because the CDE is aware of a potential data error. The CDE will publish the results for this subgroup once the correction has been made. The District and site will examine the data once release by CDE.

English Language Arts/Literacy

	Overall Achievement											
Grade Level	# of Students Enrolled	# of Students Tested	% of Enrolled Students Tested	# of Students With Scores	Mean Scale Score	% Standard Exceeded	% Standard Met	% Standard Nearly Met	% Standard Not Met			
Grade 11	560	394	70.4	381	2585.1	13	39	29	15			
All Grades	560	394	70.4	381		13	39	29	15			

		READING			WRITING			LISTENING	ì	RESEARCH/INQUIRY			
Grade Level	Demonstrating understanding of literary & non-fictional texts			Producing clear and purposeful writing			Demonstrating effective communication skills			Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information			
	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d	
Grade 11	27	55	17	18	60	19	13	70	15	29	57	13	
All Grades	27	55	17	18	60	19	13	70	15	29	57	13	

Conclusions based on this data:

- 1. 52% of Hispanic students in the 11th grade met or exceeded standard on the English Language Arts portion of the CAASPP.
- 2. At least 80% of Hispanic students in the 11th grade were At/Near/Above standard in reading, listening, and research/inquiry on the English Language Arts portion of the CAASPP.
- 3. 78% of Hispanic students in the 11th grade were At/Near/Above standard in reading, listening, and research/inquiry on the English Language Arts portion of the CAASPP.

CAASPP Results (Hispanic or Latino of Any Race)

Data for this subgroup has been suppressed by CDE because the CDE is aware of a potential data error. The CDE will publish the results for this subgroup once the correction has been made. The District and site will examine the data once release by CDE.

Mathematics

Overall Achievement											
Grade Level	# of Students Enrolled	# of Students Tested	% of Enrolled Students Tested	# of Students With Scores	Mean Scale Score	% Standard Exceeded	% Standard Met	% Standard Nearly Met	% Standard Not Met		
Grade 11	560	393	70.2	360	2529.4	3	15	25	50		
All Grades	560	393	70.2	360		3	15	25	50		

Grade Level		CONCEPTS & PROCEDURES			BLEM SOLVIN		COMMUNICATING REASONING			
	Applying ma	athematical c procedures	oncepts and	strategies	ppropriate to to solve real ematical prol	world and	Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions			
	% Above Standard	% At or Near Standard	% Below Standard	% Above Standard	% At or Near Standard	% Below Standard	% Above Standard	% At or Near Standard	% Below Standard	
Grade 11	11	35	52	6	47	44	6	58	35	
All Grades	11	35	52	6	47	44	6 58 35			

- 1. 50% of Hispanic students in the 11th grade did not meet standard on the math portion of the CAASPP.
- 2. At least 50% of Hispanic students in the 11th grade were At/Near/Above standard in Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis and Communicating Reasoning on the math portion of the CAASPP.
- 3. 50% of the Hispanic students were below standard on the Concepts and Procedures on the math portion of the CAASPP.

CAASPP Results (White)

Data for this subgroup has been suppressed by CDE because the CDE is aware of a potential data error. The CDE will publish the results for this subgroup once the correction has been made. The District and site will examine the data once release by CDE.

English Language Arts/Literacy

	Overall Achievement											
Grade Level	# of Students Enrolled	# of Students Tested	% of Enrolled Students Tested	# of Students With Scores	Mean Scale Score	% Standard Exceeded	% Standard Met	% Standard Nearly Met	% Standard Not Met			
Grade 11	560	11	2.0	11	2581.7	9	45	27	18			
All Grades	560	11	2.0	11		9	45	27	18			

		READING		WRITING				LISTENING	i	RESEARCH/INQUIRY			
Grade Level	Demonstrating understanding of literary & non-fictional texts			Producing clear and purposeful writing			Demonstrating effective communication skills			Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information			
	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d	
Grade 11	18	64	9	9	55	27	0	82	9	18	73	0	
All Grades	18	64	9	9	55	27	0	82	9	18	73	0	

Conclusions based on this data:

- 1. 72% of White students Nearly met or met standard on the English Language Arts portion of the CAASPP.
- 2. Less than 10% of the White students were below standard in reading, listening, and research/inquiry on the English Language Arts portion of the CAASPP.
- 3. 27% of White students scored below standard on the writing portion of the English Language Arts portion of the CAASPP.

CAASPP Results (White)

Data for this subgroup has been suppressed by CDE because the CDE is aware of a potential data error. The CDE will publish the results for this subgroup once the correction has been made. The District and site will examine the data once release by CDE.

Mathematics

	Overall Achievement												
Grade Level	# of Students Enrolled	# of Students Tested	% of Enrolled Students Tested	# of Students With Scores	Mean Scale Score	% Standard Exceeded	% Standard Met	% Standard Nearly Met	% Standard Not Met				
Grade 11	560	11	2.0	10	2516.4	9	0	18	64				
All Grades	All Grades 560 11 2.0 10 9 0 18 64												

		CONCEPTS & PROCEDURES		1 110	BLEM SOLVIN ING/DATA AI		со	MMUNICATI REASONING	-	
Grade Level	Applying ma	athematical c procedures	oncepts and	strategies	ppropriate to to solve real ematical prol	world and	Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions			
	% Above Standard	% At or Near Standard	% Below Standard	% Above Standard	% At or Near Standard	% Below Standard	% Above Standard	% At or Near Standard	% Below Standard	
Grade 11	10 30 40			10 10		60	0	50	40	
All Grades	10 30 40			10	10	60	0	50	40	

- 1. Almost 2/3 of White students did not meet standard on the math portion of the CAASPP.
- 2. 60% of White students were below standard in problem solving & modeling/data analysis on the math portion of the CAASPP.
- 3. 40% of White students were below standard in concepts and procedures and communicating and reasoning on the math portion of the CAASPP.

CAASPP Results (Economically Disadvantaged)

English Language Arts/Literacy

	Overall Achievement											
Grade # of Students Level # of Students Tested # of												
Grade 11	560	500	89.3	484	2577.9	13	38	28	18			
All Grades	All Grades 560 500 89.3 484 13 38 28 18											

		READING			WRITING			LISTENING	ì	RESEARCH/INQUIRY				
Grade	understa	Demonstrating understanding of literary & non-fictional texts			Producing clear and purposeful writing			Demonstrating effective communication skills			Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information			
Level	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d		
Grade 11	25	55	18	19	56	21	13	67	17	28	55	14		
All Grades	25	55	18	19	56	21	13	67	17	28	55	14		

Conclusions based on this data:

- 1. The data indicates at least 51% of Economically Disadvantaged students met or exceeded standard on the English Language Arts portion of the CAASPP.
- 2. The data reveals at least 80% of Economically Disadvantaged students were at/near/above standard in reading, listening, and research/inquiry on the English Language Arts portion of the CAASPP.
- 3. The data suggests at least 75% of Economically Diadvantaged students were at/near/above standard in writing on the English Language Arts portion of the CAASPP.

CAASPP Results (Economically Disadvantaged)

Mathematics

	Overall Achievement												
Grade Level	Students												
Grade 11	560	497	88.8	457	2523.4	3	13	23	52				
All Grades	All Grades 560 497 88.8 457 3 13 23 52												

		CONCEPTS & PROCEDURES		_	BLEM SOLVIN ING/DATA AI		COMMUNICATING REASONING				
Grade Level	Applying ma	athematical c procedures	oncepts and	strategies	ppropriate to to solve real ematical prol	world and	Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions				
	% Above Standard	% At or Near Standard	% Below Standard	% Above Standard	% At or Near Standard	% Below Standard	% Above Standard	% At or Near Standard	% Below Standard		
Grade 11	10 33 54			5	47	43	6	55	36		
All Grades	10 33 54			5	47	43	6	55	36		

- 1. The data suggest Lawndale HS students did not score well on the math portion of the CAASPP with only 16% of Economically Disadvantaged students met or exceeded standard.
- 2. The data illustrates about 54% of Economically Disadvantaged students were below standard on the math portion of the CAASPP.
- 3. The data indicates at least 52% of Economically Disadvantaged students were at/near/above standard in Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis and Communicating Reasoning on the math portion of the CAASPP.

CAASPP Results (Students w/ Disabilities)

English Language Arts/Literacy

Overall Achievement											
Grade Level	# of Students Enrolled	# of Students Tested	% of Enrolled Students Tested	# of Students With Scores	Mean Scale Score	% Standard Exceeded	% Standard Met	% Standard Nearly Met	% Standard Not Met		
Grade 11	560	52	9.3	50	2465.4	0	2	38	56		
All Grades	560	52	9.3	50		0	2	38	56		

		READING			WRITING			LISTENING	ì	RESEARCH/INQUIRY				
Grade	understa	Demonstrating understanding of literary & non-fictional texts			Producing clear and purposeful writing			Demonstrating effective communication skills			Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information			
Level	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d		
Grade 11	0	42	52	0	30	56	0	48	44	2	54	36		
All Grades	0	42	52	0 30 56			0	48	44	2	54	36		

Conclusions based on this data:

- 1. According to the data, approximately 56% of our Students with Disabilities did not meet standard on the English Language Arts portion of the CAASPP.
- 2. The data reveals at least 52% of students with disabilities scored below standard in reading and writing on the English Language Arts portion of CAASPP.
- 3. The data indicates at least 48% of students with disabilities were at/near standard in listening and research/inquiry on the English Language Arts portion of the CAASPP.

CAASPP Results (Students w/ Disabilities)

Mathematics

	Overall Achievement												
Grade Level	Students												
Grade 11	560	52	9.3	44	2421.6	0	0	4	81				
All Grades	560	52	9.3	44		0	0	4	81				

		CONCEPTS & PROCEDURES		1 110	BLEM SOLVIN ING/DATA AI		COMMUNICATING REASONING				
Grade Level	Applying ma	athematical c procedures	oncepts and	strategies	ppropriate to to solve real ematical prol	world and	Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions				
	% Above Standard	% At or Near Standard	% Below Standard	% Above Standard	% At or Near Standard	% Below Standard	% Above Standard	% At or Near Standard	% Below Standard		
Grade 11	0 2 95			0	25	73	0	32	66		
All Grades	0 2 95			0	25	73	0	32	66		

- 1. The data illustrates a majority of students with disabilities, 81%, did not meet standard in mathematics on the CAASPP.
- 2. The data indicates 2% of students with disabilities were at or near standard in concepts and procedures on the math portion of the CAASPP.
- 3. The data shows at least 25% of students with disabilities were at or near standard in problem solving and modeling/data analysis and communicating reasoning on the math portion of the CAASPP.

CAASPP Results (English Learner)

English Language Arts/Literacy

	Overall Achievement												
Grade # of Students Level # of Students Tested # of Students # of Students Tested # of Students # of													
Grade 11	560	36	6.4	33	2478.3	0	6	36	50				
All Grades	All Grades 560 36 6.4 33 0 6 36 50												

		READING			WRITING			LISTENING	ì	RESEARCH/INQUIRY				
Grade	understa	Demonstrating understanding of literary & non-fictional texts			Producing clear and purposeful writing			Demonstrating effective communication skills			Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information			
Level	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d	% Above Standar d	% At or Near Standar d	% Below Standar d		
Grade 11	0	45	52	0	42	52	0	48	42	9	48	33		
All Grades	0	45	52	0 42 52			0	48	42	9	48	33		

Conclusions based on this data:

- 1. The data indicates 42% of English Learners nearly met or me standard on the English Language Arts portion of the CAASPP.
- 2. The data suggests 42 to 48% of English Learners are at or near standard on reading, writing, listening, and research/inquiry on the English Language Arts portion of the CAASPP.
- 3. There were no English learners who were above standard in reading, writing and listening on the English portion of the CAASPP.

CAASPP Results (English Learner)

Mathematics

	Overall Achievement								
Grade Level	# of Students Enrolled	# of Students Tested	% of Enrolled Students Tested	# of Students With Scores	Mean Scale Score	% Standard Exceeded	% Standard Met	% Standard Nearly Met	% Standard Not Met
Grade 11	560	35	6.3	31	2426.5	0	0	9	80
All Grades	560	35	6.3	31		0	0	9	80

	CONCEPTS & PROCEDURES			PROBLEM SOLVING & MODELING/DATA ANALYSIS			COMMUNICATING REASONING		
Grade Level	Applying mathematical concepts and procedures		Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems			Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions			
	% Above Standard	% At or Near Standard	% Below Standard	% Above Standard	% At or Near Standard	% Below Standard	% Above Standard	% At or Near Standard	% Below Standard
Grade 11	0	16	81	0	23	71	0	32	65
All Grades	0	16	81	0	23	71	0	32	65

- 1. The data reveals English Learners struggle with mathematics in that 80% did not meet standard on the math portion of the CAASPP.
- 2. The data indicates 1/3 or less were at or near standard on Concepts & Procedures, Problem Solving, and Communicating Reasoning on the math portion of the CAASPP.
- 3. There were 0% of English Learners who were Above Standard on Concepts & Procedures, Problem Solving, and Communicating Reasoning on the math portion of the CAASPP.

CELDT (Annual Assessment) Results

		2014-15 CELDT (Annual Assessment) Results									
Grade	Adva	nced	Early Ac	dvanced	Interm	ediate	Early Inte	ermediate	Begi	nning	Number Tested
	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%	#
9	19	17	28	26	45	41	14	13	3	3	109
10	3	4	27	40	30	45	6	9	1	1	67
11	3	7	12	28	18	42	9	21	1	2	43
12	2	4	17	37	20	43	6	13	1	2	46
Total	27	10	84	32	113	43	35	13	6	2	265

- 1. Approximately 42% of the students who took the CELDT were advanced or early advanced.
- 2. The number of students taking the CELDT decline as the grade levels increase.
- 3. At Lawndale HS, there are less than 15% of students who are Early Intermediate or Beginning.

CELDT (All Assessment) Results

		2014-15 CELDT (All Assessment) Results									
Grade	Adva	ınced	Early A	dvanced	Interm	nediate	Early Inte	ermediate	Begi	nning	Number Tested
	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%	#
9	21	19	28	25	46	41	15	13	3	3	113
10	4	6	29	41	30	43	6	9	1	1	70
11	3	7	13	30	18	41	9	20	1	2	44
12	2	4	17	37	20	43	6	13	1	2	46
Total	30	11	87	32	114	42	36	13	6	2	273

- 1. Approximately 42% of the students who took the CELDT were advanced or early advanced.
- 2. The number of students taking the CELDT decline as the grade levels increase.
- 3. At Lawndale HS, there are less than 15% of students who are Early Intermediate or Beginning.

Title III Accountability (School Data)

	Annual Growth					
AMAO 1	2012-13	2013-14	2014-15			
Number of Annual Testers	154	153	265			
Percent with Prior Year Data	96.1%	100.0%	89.4%			
Number in Cohort	148	153	237			
Number Met	88	72	111			
Percent Met	59.5%	47.1%	46.8%			
NCLB Target	57.5	59.0	60.5			
Met Target	Yes	No	No			

	Attaining English Proficiency							
	201	2-13	201	3-14	2014-15			
AMAO 2	Years of EL	instruction	Years of EL	instruction	Years of EL instruction			
	Less Than 5	5 Or More	Less Than 5	5 Or More	Less Than 5	5 Or More		
Number in Cohort	17	233	12	192	19	248		
Number Met		68		60	4	102		
Percent Met		29.2%		31.3%	21.1%	41.1%		
NCLB Target	21.4	47.0	22.8	49.0	24.2	50.9		
Met Target	*	No		No	No	No		

4440.3	Adequate Yearly Progress for English Learner Subgroup					
AMAO 3	2012-13	2013-14	2014-15			
English-Language Arts						
Met Participation Rate	-	Yes	Yes			
Met Percent Proficient or Above	-	Yes	-			
Mathematics						
Met Participation Rate		Yes	Yes			
Met Percent Proficient or Above	1	Yes	1			

- 1. According to the data in AMAO 1, Lawndale High School did not meet its target in annual growth by about 12-13% during the last two years.
- 2. The data on AMAO 2 reveals Lawndale High School did not meet its target for English Learners attaining English Proficiency during the last three years.
- 3. The data on AMAO 3 indicates Lawndale High School met the participation rate and percent proficient or above on ELA and math for the AYP for English Learner subgroup.

Title III Accountability (District Data)

	Annual Growth					
AMAO 1	2012-13	2013-14	2014-15			
Number of Annual Testers	452	518	930			
Percent with Prior Year Data	90.3	100.0	91.0			
Number in Cohort	408	518	846			
Number Met	226	255	417			
Percent Met	55.4	49.2	49.3			
NCLB Target	57.5	59.0	60.5			
Met Target	No	No	No			

	Attaining English Proficiency							
	201	2-13	201	3-14	2014-15			
AMAO 2	Years of EL	instruction	Years of EL	instruction	Years of EL instruction			
	Less Than 5	5 Or More	Less Than 5	5 Or More	Less Than 5	5 Or More		
Number in Cohort	191	872	149	661	222	766		
Number Met	25	254	12	150	27	316		
Percent Met	13.1	29.1	8.1	22.7	12.2	41.3		
NCLB Target	20.1	45.1	21.4	47.0	24.2	50.9		
Met Target	No	No	No	No	No	No		

*****	Adequate Yearly Progress for English Learner Subgroup at the LEA Level					
AMAO 3	2012-13	2013-14	2014-15			
English-Language Arts						
Met Participation Rate	Yes	Yes	97			
Met Percent Proficient or Above	No	Yes	N/A			
Mathematics						
Met Participation Rate	Yes	Yes	95			
Met Percent Proficient or Above	No	Yes	N/A			
Met Target for AMAO 3	No	Yes				

- 1. According to the data in AMAO 1, the district did not meet its target in annual growth.
- 2. The data on AMAO 2 reveals the district did not meet its target for English Learners attaining English Proficiency during the last three years.
- 3. The data on AMAO 3 indicates the district met the participation rate and percent proficient or above on ELA and math for the AYP for English Learner subgroup in 2013-14 but not in 2012-13.

2014-15 Enrollment

Grade Level	Number of Students
Grade 9	537
Grade 10	481
Grade 11	586
Grade 12	636
Total Enrollment	2,241

Group	Percent of Total Enrollment
Black or African American	13.2
American Indian or Alaska Native	
Asian	2.2
Filipino	1.2
Hispanic or Latino	75.9
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander	0.1
White	1.8
Two or More Races	1.9
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged	88.9
English Learners	10.9
Students with Disabilities	10.6

- 1. The enrollment numbers for Lawndale High School has steadily increased during the past three years.
- 2. The size of each class has shrunk from 12th grade through 10th grade but the 9th grade class has grown probably due to recruitment efforts to attract more students to the CV district.
- 3. The students at Lawndale High School are made up of a mostly Hispanic (76%), Black/African American (13%), Asian (2.2%), Filipino (1.2%), and White (2%).

Suspension and Expulsion

Rate	School			District			State		
	2012-13	2013-14	2014-15	2012-13	2013-14	2014-15	2012-13	2013-14	2014-15
Suspensions	0.46	2.95	2.53	5.26	4.69	2.34	5.07	4.36	3.80
Expulsions	0.00	0.00	0.13	0.00	0.00	0.05	0.13	0.10	0.09

- 1. The suspensions have increased at Lawndale HS during the past three years but still low compared to district and state averages.
- 2. The district numbers of suspensions have decreased over the past three years.
- 3. The expulsion of students has remained relatively low at Lawndale HS and in the district compared to the state.

AP Scores

	2013-14									
	Grade 12 Enrollment	Grades 11 + 12 Enrollment	Number Tested	AP Score=1	AP Score=2	AP Score=3	AP Score=4	AP Score=5		
District										

2014-15								
	Enrollment 9-12	Number Tested	AP Score=1	AP Score=2	AP Score=3	AP Score=4	AP Score=5	
District								

2015-16								
	Enrollment 9-12	Number Tested	AP Score=1	AP Score=2	AP Score=3	AP Score=4	AP Score=5	
District								

SAT Scores

2013-14								
	Grade 12	Number	Percent	Average Score			# of Scores ≥	% of Scores ≥
	Enrollment	Tested	Tested	Reading	Math	Writing	1500	1500
District								

	2014-15								
E	Enrollment			Average Score	# of Scores ≥	% of Scores ≥			
	9-12	Number Tested	Reading	Math	Writing	1500	1500		
District									

	2015-16								
	Enrollment	No bo To at a d		Average Score	# of Scores ≥	% of Scores ≥			
	9-12	Number Tested	Reading	Math	Writing	1500	1500		
District									

Graduation and Dropout Rate (Four Year Cohort Rate)

Indicator	School			District			State		
	2011-12	2012-13	2013-14	2011-12	2012-13	2013-14	2011-12	2012-13	2013-14
Dropout Rate	4.50	4.00	5.30	24.00	18.20	16.90	13.10	11.40	11.50
Graduation Rate	92.33	93.19	90.61	64.67	68.16	70.72	78.87	80.44	80.95

Conclusions based on this data:

The graduation rate at Lawndale High School has remained 90% or above during the past three years which is higher than district or state averages.

The graduation rate at Lawndale High School dropped 3% from 2012-13 to 2013-14.

NCLB Core and Compliant Classes

(a)	Percent of Classes In Core Academic Subjects						
Location of Classes	Taught by Highly Qualified Teachers	Not Taught by Highly Qualified Teachers					
This School	82.9	17.1					
All Schools in District	81.3	18.7					
High-Poverty Schools in District	80.4	19.6					
Low-Poverty Schools in District	100.0	0.0					

Conclusions based on this data:

Over 82.9% of the classes offered at Lawndale High School are taught by highly qualified teachers which is higher than comparable schools in the district.

Planned Improvements in Student Performance

School Goal #1

The School Site Council has analyzed the academic performance of all student groups and has considered the effectiveness of key elements of the instructional program for students failing to meet academic performance index (API) and adequate yearly progress growth (AYP) targets. As a result, it has adopted the following school goals, related actions, and expenditures to raise the academic performance of students not yet meeting state standards:

SUBJECT: Student Achievement

LEA/LCAP GOAL:

LCAP Goal Alignment

Goal #1: Close the achievement gaps between all students and the District's five lowest performing subgroups by increasing the percentage of EL, Black/African-American, SpEd, Foster Youth, and Low Income students who graduate and who are ready for college, career, and life.

Goal #3: Increase the alignment of district-level educational, fiscal, human resources in order to better support schools in providing students access to college and career ready courses through the implementation of innovative, research-based programs and the Common Core State Standards.

LEA Plan Goal Alignment:

Goal #1: All students will reach high standards, at a minimum, attaining proficiency or better in reading and mathematics, by 2016-2017.

Goal #2: All limited-English-proficient students will become proficient in English and reach high academic standards, at a minimum attaining proficiency or better in reading/language arts and mathematics.

Goal #3: By 2016-17, all students will be taught by highly qualified teachers.

SCHOOL GOAL #1:

Student Achievement: Increase student performance on all academic indicators.

WASC Goal Alignment:

Goal #1: Students shall be taught by highly-qualified teachers. Students will have access to standards- aligned materials. Students will be educated in facilities that are maintained in good repair.

Goal #2: Students shall have access to the Common Core Standards in English Language Arts (ELA) and Math. Students shall also have access to science and social studies state standards, literacy in science, and technical subject standards.

Goal #4: Increase student performance on standardized tests.

Expected Schoolwide Learning Outcomes Alignment (per CV Graduate Profile):

College & Career Ready Individuals

Socially Aware & Responsive Community Members

Data Used to Form this Goal:

1. 2014-15: SBAC Overall

588 eleventh grade students took SBAC English and math tests:

- 14% of eleventh grade students exceeded standard on the ELA SBAC
- 39% of eleventh grade students met standard on the ELA SBAC
- 28% of eleventh grade students nearly met standard on the ELA SBAC
- 18% of eleventh grade students not met standard on the ELA SBAC
- 4% of eleventh grade students exceeded standard on the math SBAC
- 14% of eleventh grade students met standard on the math SBAC
- 24% of eleventh grade students nearly met standard on the math SBAC
- 56% of eleventh grade students not met standard on the math SBAC

2. 2014-15: SBAC Subgroups

588 eleventh grade tested SBAC Math exam

- 44% were at/near/above standard in Concepts & Procedures
- 52% were at/near/above standard in Problem Solving and Modeling Data
- 61% were at/near/above standard in Communicating Reasoning

588 eleventh grade tested SBAC ELA exam

- 80% were at/near/above standard in Reading
- 74% were at/near/above standard in Writing
- 80% were at/near/above standard in Listening
- 83% were at/near/above standard in Research/Inquiry

3. 2015-16 -- 92% graduation rate, 517/561 students 2015-16 -- 40% A-G completion rate, 228/561 students

4. 2014 Early Assessment Program (EAP)

619 students were tested in English and math

- 484 tested and 71% of Hispanic/Latino students were not ready for College English and 66% not ready for College math
- 89 tested and 75% of Black/African-American students were not ready for College English and 67% not ready for College math
- 61 tested and 95% of EL students were not ready for College English and 86% not ready for College math
- 374 tested and 72% of Economically Disadvantaged were not ready for College English and 66% not ready for College math

Findings from the Analysis of this Data:

The analysis of data reveals that additional and further ELA and math interventions are required to improve the achievement of all subgroups of students.

The analysis of data reveals that additional supports are needed to help students be college/career ready, including improving A-G completion rate.

How the School will Evaluate the Progress of this Goal:

Each Fall and Spring the SSC Committee, ELD Coordinator, AVID Coordinator, Department Chairpersons, Lead Academy Teachers and Site Leadership team will analyze growth and achievement goals for SBAC, CSA, and CFA scores during collaboration time and leadership meetings by grade level, subject area, and academy.

How the School will Evaluate the Progress of this Goal:

Evaluate 9th and 10th grade students on their performance on the interim SBAC tests and Evaluate 11th grade SBAC data

Analyze common assessments data

Grades in ELA/Math

Look at student performance on CFA and CSA tests

Evaluate 2015 and 2016 AP Scores

Evaluate EAP scores

Analyze a-g completion data

Actions to be Taken	I:	Person(s)	_	Proposed Expe	enditure(s)	
to Reach This Goal	Timeline	Responsible	Description	Туре	Funding Source	Amount
1.1 Students shall have equitable access to standards based course materials for all students aligned to Common Core State Standards (ELA & math), ELD Framework, and NGSS. (LCAP Goal #1, SSC Goal #2, WASC Goal #1)	Aug 01, 2016 – June 30, 2017	Administration, Instructional Coaches, department chairpersons, teachers, Activities Director, ASB Director, and academy coordinators	Professional Development-Common Core Professional Development-UCLA Math & History			
			Illuminate item bank for Common Core/SBAC test preparation Professional			
			Development-UCLA Next Generation Science Standards (NGSS)			

Timeline	Person(s) Responsible		Proposed Expenditure(s)			
aug 01, 2016 – June Si	Responsible	Description	Туре	Funding Source	Amount	
0, 2017	Site Administration, Ed Services, ELD Coordinator, Site Leadership Team, Counselors	Ensure Master Schedule has sufficient Classes to meet EL language acquisition needs				
		Identify ELD levels of proficiency using EDGE for incoming freshmen and CELDT for currently enrolled students. Students will be placed in intervention classes identified in matrix based on the test results. ELD stipend to monitor implementation of intervention for English				
0,	2017	Services, ELD Coordinator, Site Leadership Team,	Administration, Ed Services, ELD Coordinator, Site Leadership Team, Counselors Identify ELD levels of proficiency using EDGE for incoming freshmen and CELDT for currently enrolled students. Students will be placed in intervention classes identified in matrix based on the test results.	Administration, Ed Services, ELD Coordinator, Site Leadership Team, Counselors Identify ELD levels of proficiency using EDGE for incoming freshmen and CELDT for currently enrolled students. Students will be placed in intervention classes identified in matrix based on the test results. ELD stipend to monitor implementation of intervention for English	Administration, Ed Services, ELD Coordinator, Site Leadership Team, Counselors Identify ELD levels of proficiency using EDGE for incoming freshmen and CELDT for currently enrolled students. Students will be placed in intervention classes identified in matrix based on the test results. ELD stipend to monitor implementation of intervention for English	

5% in ELA for 2015/2016 school year. (LCAP Goal #1, SSC Goal #4, WASC Goal #2) 1.5 Increase number of students participating and passing AP Exams administered by the College Board. (LCAP Goal #1, SSC Goal #7, WASC Goal #2) 1.6 Increase a-g completion and college readiness indicators. (LCAP Goal #1, SSC Goal #8, WASC Goal #4)	Coaches, department chairpersons, teachers, Activities Director, ASB Director, and academy coordinators	Provide personnel for intervention programs, Intervention Teacher Salary: Read-180, ELA Success, ALEKS, SAI, EL etc (includes benefits)	1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries	Title I	78,400.00
		Provide supplies for Intervention Courses - Read 180 Consumables	4000-4999: Books And Supplies	Title I	10,002.47
		Math Essentials Scientific Calculators	4000-4999: Books And Supplies	Title I	3,000.00
		Health and Welfare for Intervention teachers (cert)	3000-3999: Employee Benefits	Title I	14,752.0
		Provide targeted test prep for at-risk students taking annual AP Courses/Exams.	1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries	Title I	5,750.00
The Single Plan for Student Achievement	28 of 70	AVID Tutors to work in AVID intervention classes providing oneon-one assistance and tutoring to students. Increased to 20 tutors.	2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries	Title I	133,760.00

Actions to be Taken		Person(s)		Proposed Expe	enditure(s)	
to Reach This Goal	Timeline	Responsible	Description	Туре	Funding Source	Amount
1.4 Increase rate of standards met for 11th grade SBAC by 5% in Math and 5% in ELA for 2015/2016 school year. (LCAP Goal #1, SSC Goal #4, WASC Goal #2) 1.5 Increase number of students participating and passing AP Exams	Aug 01, 2016 – June 30, 2017	Administration, Instructional Coaches, department chairpersons, teachers, Activities Director, ASB	Provide opportunities for students to attend college/career explorations (inclu. buses and subs)	5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures	Title I	15,726.00
administered by the College Board. (LCAP Goal #1, SSC Goal #7, WASC Goal #2) 1.6 Increase a-g completion and college readiness indicators. (LCAP Goal #1, SSC Goal #8, WASC Goal #4)		Director, and academy coordinators	SAT Prep training for teachers to deliver SAT curriculum Purchase two Chromebook carts (40 laptops in each) to provide student support in A-G completion and College Readiness. Students explore tutoring websites, complete College applications and collaborate in Google Classroom.	5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures	Title I	3,000.00

Actions to be Taken		Person(s)		Proposed Ex	rpenditure(s)	
to Reach This Goal	Timeline	Responsible	Description	Туре	Funding Source	Amount
"1.3 Identify and implement schoolwide instructional practices to increase academic achievement focused on literacy across all content areas and incorporating AVID instructional practices (LCAP Goal #1, SSC Goal #8, WASC Goal #2) 1.7 Development and training for teachers, counselors, administration in intervention strategies and methods for students scoring below standard in ELA and math on SBAC interim and comprehensive exams. (LCAP Goal #2, SSC Goal #1, WASC Goal #1) 1.8 Grading practices specifically focused on giving effective feedback to students on their performance. (LCAP Goal #3, SSC Goal #1, WASC Goal #4)"	Aug 01, 2016 – June 30, 2017	Administration, Instructional Coaches, department chairpersons, teachers, Activities Director, ASB Director, and academy coordinators	Site supplemental professional development, sound schoolwide instructional strategies and grading practices, Common Core, and student data analysis Provide rewards and incentives for students to improvement in proficiency levels. Professional development and training for teachers to use Illuminate, an online, web based warehouse system to store, analyze, and report student test data. Explore bell schedule options.			

Planned Improvements in Student Performance

School Goal #2

The School Site Council has analyzed the academic performance of all student groups and has considered the effectiveness of key elements of the instructional program for students failing to meet academic performance index (API) and adequate yearly progress growth (AYP) targets. As a result, it has adopted the following school goals, related actions, and expenditures to raise the academic performance of students not yet meeting state standards:

SUBJECT: School Climate & Culture

LEA/LCAP GOAL:

LCAP Goal #2: Build local capacity to fully implement a multi-tiered system of supports in all classrooms and throughout the organization by actively engaging students, families, and the school community in promoting students' academic and behavioral health.

LEA Plan Alignment:

Goal #5: All students will graduate from high school.

SCHOOL GOAL #2:

School Climate & Culture: Build a positive school culture of trust and collaboration to improve student achievement.

WASC Goal Alignment:

Goal #3: Increase parent and community engagement.

Goal #5: Increase student attendance rates while decreasing chronic absenteeism rates. Also, increase high school graduation rates.

Expected Schoolwide Learning Outcomes Alignment (per CV Graduate Profile):

Socially Aware & Responsive Community Members

Effective Communicators

Ethical Leaders

Data Used to Form this Goal:

1. 2014-15: SBAC Overall

588 eleventh grade students took SBAC English and math tests:

- 14% of eleventh grade students exceeded standard on the ELA SBAC
- 39% of eleventh grade students met standard on the ELA SBAC
- 28% of eleventh grade students nearly met standard on the ELA SBAC
- 18% of eleventh grade students not met standard on the ELA SBAC
- 4% of eleventh grade students exceeded standard on the math SBAC
- 14% of eleventh grade students met standard on the math SBAC
- 24% of eleventh grade students nearly met standard on the math SBAC
- 56% of eleventh grade students not met standard on the math SBAC

2. 2014-15: SBAC Subgroups

588 eleventh grade tested SBAC Math exam

- 44% were at/near/above standard in Concepts & Procedures
- 52% were at/near/above standard in Problem Solving and Modeling Data
- 61% were at/near/above standard in Communicating Reasoning

588 eleventh grade tested SBAC ELA exam

- 80% were at/near/above standard in Reading
- 74% were at/near/above standard in Writing
- 80% were at/near/above standard in Listening
- 83% were at/near/above standard in Research/Inquiry

3. 2015-16 -- 92% graduation rate, 517/561 students 2015-16 -- 40% A-G completion rate, 228/561 students

4. 2014 Early Assessment Program (EAP)

619 students were tested in English and math

- 484 tested and 71% of Hispanic/Latino students were not ready for College English and 66% not ready for College math
- 89 tested and 75% of Black/African-American students were not ready for College English and 67% not ready for College math
- 61 tested and 95% of EL students were not ready for College English and 86% not ready for College math
- 374 tested and 72% of Economically Disadvantaged were not ready for College English and 66% not ready for College math

Findings from the Analysis of this Data:

Analysis revealed that special focus should be placed on the EL, SED, SWD, Hispanic and African American students in Algebra, Geometry, and Algebra II to assist in achieving proficiency in these areas.

Analysis revealed that focus should be placed on EL students in ELA and math to better support LTELs toward graduation and college readiness.

How the School will Evaluate the Progress of this Goal:

Each Fall and Spring the SSC Committee, ELD Coordinator, AVID Coordinator, Department Chairpersons, Lead Academy Teachers and Site Leadership team will analyze growth and achievement goals for SBAC, CSA, and CFA scores during collaboration time and leadership meetings by grade level, subject area, and academy.

How the School will Evaluate the Progress of this Goal:

Survey HKCS - students, parents, and staff

Speak Up Survey - students, parents, and staff

Needs assessment

Sign in sheets from parent meetings

Parent Center Sign in sheets

PIQE participation

Suspension report

Expulsion report

Actions to be Taken		Person(s)	Proposed Expenditure(s)			
to Reach This Goal	Timeline	Responsible	Description	Туре	Funding Source	Amount
2.1 Increase the sense of safety and school connectedness among students, parents, and staff. (LCAP Goal #2, SSC Goal #6, WASC Goal #3) 2.2 Educate Lawndale parents on how to foster a positive educational environment for their children both at home and at school. (LCAP Goal #2, SSC Goal #6, WASC Goal #3, #5) 2.3 Implement an anti-bullying campaign for all students. (LCAP Goal #2, SSC Goal #6, WASC Goal #3)	Aug 01, 2016 – June 30, 2017	Administration, Instructional Coaches, department chairpersons, teachers, Activities Director, ASB Director, and academy coordinators	California Healthy Kids Survey (students) California Healthy Kids Survey (teachers) Morning supervisors or tutoring for students with no 1st/2nd Education walks for parents Health Care Integrated Systems Clinic - offer parent classes (maybe Zumba) Parent supplies: newsletters, binders, copies, records and sign in sheets, postage and envelopes Parent Education and Leadership training Teen Truth Anti-Bullying. School posters outlining discipline and consequences for various actions/behaviors Development and implementation drug and alcohol prevention & healthy choices programs. Develop 9th grade advisory/seminar to include anti-drug/gangs curriculum.	4000-4999: Books And Supplies	Title I	3,633.26

Actions to be Taken		Person(s)		Proposed Expe	enditure(s)	
to Reach This Goal	Timeline	Responsible	Description	Туре	Funding Source	Amount
"2.4 Frequently inform students and parents of college and postsecondary career opportunities. (LCAP Goal #1, SSC Goal #3, WASC Goal #3)	Aug 01, 2016 – June 30, 2017	Administration, Instructional Coaches, department	"Title I and Parent Involvement Specialist	1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries	Title I	45,179.87
2.5 Increase frequency and varied types of communication to parents regarding school information. (LCAP Goal #2, SSC Goal #3, WASC Goal #3) 2.6 Increase the depth of and frequency by which parents are informed of student academic progress and need for intervention. (LCAP Goal #2, SSC Goal #3, WASC		chairpersons, teachers, Activities Director, ASB Director, and academy coordinators	Parent workshops (transcripts, graduation requirements, FAFSA), PTSA, athletics' boosters, parent nights, Title I Facilitator, parent web-site, snacks for parent attendance.	4000-4999: Books And Supplies	Title I	650.00
Goal #3)"			Teen Parent Coordinator	1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries	Title I	2,875.00
			Parent Institute for Quality Education (PIQE)	5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures	Title I	16,000.00
			Grade level Back On Track Parent intervention meetings			
			MSA, AMA, BCA, ALS, AVID Academy Parent nights			
			AP Parent Night			
			Cardinal Parent Welcome Center & Community Liaison	2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries	Title I	52,858.00
			Open House/Parents' Night Out			
			"Blackboard Connect, Parent portal on website, Email, and marquee. Mail home monthly parent newsletters."			

Actions to be Taken	I:	Person(s)	_	Proposed Expe	enditure(s)	
to Reach This Goal	Timeline	Responsible	Description	Туре	Funding Source	Amount
"2.4 Frequently inform students and parents of college and postsecondary career opportunities. (LCAP Goal #1, SSC Goal #3, WASC Goal #3) 2.5 Increase frequency and varied types of communication to parents regarding school information. (LCAP Goal #2, SSC Goal #3, WASC Goal #3) 2.6 Increase the depth of and frequency by which parents are informed of student academic progress and need for intervention. (LCAP Goal #2, SSC Goal #3, WASC Goal #3)"	Aug 01, 2016 – June 30, 2017	Administration, Instructional Coaches, department chairpersons, teachers, Activities Director, ASB Director, and academy coordinators	Parent Ambassadors for each academy and AVID Email Marketing - Constant Contact for Parents	4000-4999: Books And Supplies	Title I	600.00
2.7 Improve school connectedness through group and schoolwide events that promote appreciation for diversity, tolerance and acceptance, and peaceful conflict resolution. (LCAP Goal #2, SSC Goal #6, WASC Goal #5)		Administration, Instructional Coaches, department chairpersons, teachers, Activities Director, ASB Director, and academy coordinators	Quarterly academic celebrations to promote student and staff efficacy. Community Building Training for teachers to build relationships in order to improve student connectedness and performance Multicultural events celebrating different cultures on campus PBIS Strategies and rewards to support improved attendance	1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries	Title I	49,000.00
			Project Grit - Dr. Rios targeted intervention for at risk students of trauma	5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures	Title I	20,000.00

Planned Improvements in Student Performance

School Goal #3

The School Site Council has analyzed the academic performance of all student groups and has considered the effectiveness of key elements of the instructional program for students failing to meet academic performance index (API) and adequate yearly progress growth (AYP) targets. As a result, it has adopted the following school goals, related actions, and expenditures to raise the academic performance of students not yet meeting state standards:

SUBJECT: Student Engagement & Support

LEA/LCAP GOAL:

LCAP Goal #2: Build local capacity to fully implement a multi-tiered system of supports in all classrooms and throughout the organization by actively engaging students, families, and the school community in promoting students' academic and behavioral health.

LEA Plan Alignment:

Goal #4: All students will be educated in learning environments that are safe, drug free, and conducive to learning.

Goal #5: All students will graduate from high school.

SCHOOL GOAL #3:

Student Engagement & Support: Provide academic and personal support to all students to increase student, parent, and staff connection to the school.

WASC Goal Alignment:

Goal #1: Students shall be taught by highly-qualified teachers. Students will have access to standards- aligned materials. Students will be educated in facilities that are maintained in good repair.

Goal #2: Students shall have access to the Common Core Standards in English Language Arts (ELA) and Math. Students shall also have access to science and social studies state standards, literacy in science, and technical subject standards.

Goal #4: Increase student performance on standardized tests.

Expected Schoolwide Learning Outcomes Alignment (per CV Graduate Profile):

College & Career Ready Individuals

Socially Aware & Responsive Community Members

Ethical Leaders

Data Used to Form this Goal:

1. 2014-15: SBAC Overall

588 eleventh grade students took SBAC English and math tests:

- 14% of eleventh grade students exceeded standard on the ELA SBAC
- 39% of eleventh grade students met standard on the ELA SBAC
- 28% of eleventh grade students nearly met standard on the ELA SBAC
- 18% of eleventh grade students not met standard on the ELA SBAC
- 4% of eleventh grade students exceeded standard on the math SBAC
- 14% of eleventh grade students met standard on the math SBAC
- 24% of eleventh grade students nearly met standard on the math SBAC
- 56% of eleventh grade students not met standard on the math SBAC

2. 2014-15: SBAC Subgroups

588 eleventh grade tested SBAC Math exam

- 44% were at/near/above standard in Concepts & Procedures
- 52% were at/near/above standard in Problem Solving and Modeling Data
- 61% were at/near/above standard in Communicating Reasoning

588 eleventh grade tested SBAC ELA exam

- 80% were at/near/above standard in Reading
- 74% were at/near/above standard in Writing
- 80% were at/near/above standard in Listening
- 83% were at/near/above standard in Research/Inquiry

3. 2015-16 -- 92% graduation rate, 517/561 students 2015-16 -- 40% A-G completion rate, 228/561 students

4. 2014 Early Assessment Program (EAP)

619 students were tested in English and math

- 484 tested and 71% of Hispanic/Latino students were not ready for College English and 66% not ready for College math
- 89 tested and 75% of Black/African-American students were not ready for College English and 67% not ready for College math
- 61 tested and 95% of EL students were not ready for College English and 86% not ready for College math
- 374 tested and 72% of Economically Disadvantaged were not ready for College English and 66% not ready for College math

Findings from the Analysis of this Data:

The analysis of data reveals that additional and further ELA and math interventions are required to improve the achievement of all subgroups of students.

The analysis of data reveals that additional supports are needed to help students be college/career ready, including improving A-G completion rate.

How the School will Evaluate the Progress of this Goal:

Each Fall and Spring the SSC Committee, ELD Coordinator, AVID Coordinator, Department Chairpersons, Lead Academy Teachers and Site Leadership team will analyze growth and achievement goals for SBAC, CSA, and CFA scores during collaboration time and leadership meetings by grade level, subject area, and academy.

How the School will Evaluate the Progress of this Goal:

Monthly attendance rate reports (goal charts around campus)

Monthly chronic absentee rates share with stakeholders

Graduation rate in all subgroups and students who fulfill the a-g requirements

Collaboration and looking at observation data

Workshop sign ins

Attendance report

Drop out Data

Actions to be Taken	I.	Person(s)	_	Proposed Expe	enditure(s)	
to Reach This Goal	Timeline	Responsible	Description	Туре	Funding Source	Amount
"3.1 Development and training for teachers, counselors, administration for differentiation and intervention strategies and methods for all students subgroups including EL's, SPED, Black/African-American, Foster Youth, and Low Income who score below standard on SBAC in English and math. (LCAP Goal #1, SSC Goal #1, WASC Goal #2) 3.2 Increase teacher collaboration to 90% participation by implementing Professional Learning Communities, conducting Focus Walks, and sharing "best practices" lessons, rubrics, common assessments, and differentiation strategies. (LCAP Goal #2, SSC Goal #1, WASC Goal #1)"	Aug 01, 2016 – June 30, 2017	Administration, Instructional Coaches, department chairpersons, teachers, Activities Director, ASB Director, and academy coordinators	Train teachers on AVID strategies AP classes support/materials All 1st and 2nd year teachers will attend BTSA induction workshops. Additional classroom technology and equipment for student interventions that support increased proficiency.		LCFF - Supplemental LCFF - Supplemental	

into more content courses. (LCAP Goal #3, SSC Goal #7, WASC Goal #4) 3.4 Maintain and improve small learning communities/academies in which students explore the wide variety of career options through hands-on, problem-based, project-based, critical thinking, and rigorous real-world application (AMA, BCA, MSA, ASLA, AVID, 9th grade house). (LCAP Goal #3, SSC Goal #7, WASC Goal #4) 3.5 Increase the attendance rate by

3.5 Increase the attendance rate by 2% for the 2015/16 school year. (LCAP Goal #2, SSC Goal #5, WASC Goal #4)"

Coaches, department chairpersons, teachers, Activities Director, ASB Director, and academy coordinators

curriculum materials and field trips to enhance student engagement as related to implementation of Common Core.

Biomedical Career Academy (BCA) – students explore the wide variety of health care and science career options through handson, problem-based instructional activities, and Direct Interactive Instruction

Academy of Media Arts (AMA)-students use project-based instructional activities to think critically and creatively to solve realworld problems through digital, visual, music, and theatrical media.

Marine Science
Academy (MSA)students use project
based and problem
solving instructional
activities that prepares
students for a rigorous
university science
program through marine
science, technology, and
career opportunities.

American Sign Language Academy (ASLA)-

Actions to be Taken	I:	Person(s)		Proposed Expe	enditure(s)	
to Reach This Goal	Timeline	Responsible	Description	Туре	Funding Source	Amount
3.6 Increase the graduation rate by 2% for the 2015/16 school year. (LCAP Goal #2, SSC Goal #5, WASC Goal #4)	Aug 01, 2016 – June 30, 2017	Administration, Instructional Coaches, department chairpersons, teachers, Activities Director, ASB Director, and academy coordinators	Tutoring (offered at no- expense to students) AP/SAT/ACT preparation. Counselors review A-G requirements and student academic four- year plan. Counselors and student success teams provide interventions for at-risk students. Surveying teachers for possible course offerings Surveying students for possible course interests Explore the possibility of the development of new small learning communities Advanced Placement Course Applications Advanced Placement Student Interest Applications			

Centralized Services for Planned Improvements in Student Performance

The following actions and related expenditures support this site program goal and will be performed as a centralized service. Note: the total amount for each categorical program in this section must be aligned with the Consolidated Application.

Centralized Service Goal #1

SUBJECT: Centralized Services for Planned Improvements in Student Performance in District and State assessments.

LEA Plan and LCAP Goal #1:

LCAP Goal #1: Close the achievement gaps between all students and the District's five lowest performing subgroups by increasing the percentage of EL, Black/African-American, SpEd, Foster Youth, and Low Income students who graduate and who are ready for college, career, and life.

LEA Plan Goal Alignment:

Goal #1: All students will reach high standards, at a minimum, attaining proficiency or better in reading and mathematics, by 2016-2017.

Goal #2: All limited-English-proficient students will become proficient in English and reach high academic standards, at a minimum attaining proficiency or better in reading/language arts and mathematics.

Goal #5: All students will graduate from high school.

Actions to be Taken	Time alline	Person(s)	Proposed Expenditure(s)				
to Reach This Goal	Timeline	Responsible	Description	Туре	Funding Source	Amount	
Provide Professional Learning: Cognitive Coach Traning Expository Reading and Writing Training Honors/GATE Certification	2016-2017	Director of Curriculum and Instruction	Conferences, Extra duty, Subs, and benefits		LCFF	23894	

Actions to be Taken	Time aline	Person(s)	Proposed Expenditure(s)			
to Reach This Goal	Timeline	Responsible	Description	Туре	Funding Source	Amount
Enhance ELL Program Coordination and Support	2016-2017	Integrated EL Literacy Coach	College Visits/Learning Trips for ELD Students		Title III Immigrant Education Program	12478
		Director of Federal and State Programs	Culturally Relevant Materials to Support Immigrant Students' Transition and Social/Emotional Health ELD/SL Teacher Collaboration at all			
			School Sites Benefits for extra duty pay related to ELD/SL teacher collaborations			
			LTEL College Trips CELDT Incentives for Students		Title III Part A: Language Instruction for LEP Students	12000
			ELLevation Contract and Training			
Provide Summer Learning for Struggling Students	2016-2017	Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services	Teacher Salary and benefits for summer courses		Title I	235642
		Director of Curriculum and Instruction	Summer PD to address LEA Goals focused on increasing student achievement		Title I	161,830

Actions to be Taken		Person(s)	Proposed Expenditure(s)				
to Reach This Goal	Timeline	Responsible	Description	Туре	Funding Source	Amount	
Provide resources to Enhance Academic Interventions and Enrichments based on RTI and PLC response to student needs: Homeless support SES Tutoring Choice Transportation District Administration District Administrative Assistance Title I Training/Workshops	2016-2017	Coordinator of Child Welfare and Attendance Director of Federal and State Programs	Required and Allowed Reservations		Title I	765724	
Provide Summer Learning for Struggling Students (13)	2015-2016		Teacher Salary for summer courses		Title I	318,762	
Reinforce English Language Acquisition Through Contextualized Learning (17)	2015-2016		EL Instructional Coach Salary for Districtwide support		Title III Part A: Language Instruction for LEP Students	131,320	
Expand AVID Program (26)			AVID Summer PD AVID Site Membership		Title I	54,793	

Centralized Services for Planned Improvements in Student Performance

Centralized Service Goal #2

SUBJECT: Centralized Services for Planned Improvements in Student Performance in Academic Achievement and Behavioral Health

LEA Plan and LCAP Goal #2:

LCAP Goal #2: Build local capacity to fully implement a multi-tiered system of supports in all classrooms and throughout the organization by actively engaging students, families, and the school community in promoting students' academic and behavioral health.

LEA Plan Goal Alignment:

Goal #4: All students will be educated in learning environments that are safe, drug free, and conducive to learning.

Actions to be Taken	I.	Person(s) Propose			Expenditure(s)	
to Reach This Goal	Timeline	Responsible	Description	Туре	Funding Source	Amount
Family Engagement Initiative		Director of Federal and State Programs	Meeting Materials and Support		Title I	5534

Centralized Services for Planned Improvements in Student Performance

Centralized Service Goal #3

SUBJECT: Centralized Services for Planned Improvements in Student Performance in Academic Achievement and Behavioral Health.

LEA Plan and LCAP Goal #3:

LCAP Goal #3: Increase the alignment of district-level educational, fiscal, human resources in order to better support schools in providing students access to college and career ready courses through the implementation of innovative, research-based programs and the Common Core State Standards.

LEA Plan Goal Alignment:

Goal #3: By 2016-17, all students will be taught by highly qualified teachers.

Actions to be Taken	The allow	Person(s)	Proposed Expenditure(s)			
to Reach This Goal	Timeline	Responsible	Description	Туре	Funding Source	Amount
Improve Teacher Quality through Professional Development	2016-2017	Director of Curriculum and Instruction	Teacher Professional Development - Materials and Supplies Teacher Professional Development- Snacks Enhance instruction towards closing the achievement gap - Subs and Benefits Expository Reading and Writing (ERWC) Training UCLA Science Project UCLA Science Project Sub		Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality	230259

Actions to be Taken	Timedia	Person(s)	Proposed Expenditure(s)			
to Reach This Goal	Timeline	Responsible	Description	Туре	Funding Source	Amount
Upgrade technology infrastructure and Equipment/ Software: Technology trainers at each site to provide professional development to teachers on incorporating technology into their lessons to reach students with all learning styles.	2016-2017	Coordinator of Technology	Technology Trainers and Benefits		Title II Part A: Improving Teacher Quality	22230

Total Allocations and Expenditures by Funding Source

Total Allocations by Funding Source					
Funding Source Allocation Balance (Allocations-Expenditures)					
Title I	507390	0.00			

Total Expenditures by Funding Source				
Funding Source Total Expenditures				
Title I	507,390.00			

Total Expenditures by Object Type

Object Type	Total Expenditures	
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries	181,204.87	
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries	186,618.00	
3000-3999: Employee Benefits	46,854.40	
4000-4999: Books And Supplies	22,260.73	
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures	70,452.00	

Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source

Object Type	Funding Source	Total Expenditures
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries	Title I	181,204.87
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries	Title I	186,618.00
3000-3999: Employee Benefits	Title I	46,854.40
4000-4999: Books And Supplies	Title I	22,260.73
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating	Title I	70,452.00

Total Expenditures by Goal

Goal Number	Total Expenditures		
Goal 1	316,593.87		
Goal 2	190,796.13		

School Site Council Membership

California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school. The current make-up of the SSC is as follows:

Name of Members	Principal	Classroom Teacher	Other School Staff	Parent or Community Member	Secondary Students
Paula Hart Rodas	X				
Yaqueline Amador, Y. Amador				Х	
Demetre Howard		Х			
Leticia Rojas		Х			
Dawn Ketchens		Х			
Fred Sanders		Х			
Nina Lofton-Weeks				Х	
Wendy Noah				Х	
Eugene Kwong			X		
Demetri Hicks					Х
Affiong Bassey					Х
Cynthia Lopez					Х
Numbers of members of each category:	1	4	1	3	3

At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must be selected by their peer group.

Recommendations and Assurances

The school site council (SSC) recommends this school plan and Proposed Expenditure(s)s to the district governing board for approval and assures the board of the following:

- 1. The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law.
- 2. The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies relating to material changes in the Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval.
- 3. The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan (Check those that apply):

	State Compensatory Education Advisory Committee	
		Signature
Χ	English Learner Advisory Committee	
		Signature
	Special Education Advisory Committee	
		Signature
	Gifted and Talented Education Program Advisory Committee	
		Signature
	District/School Liaison Team for schools in Program Improvement	
		Signature
	Compensatory Education Advisory Committee	
		Signature
	Departmental Advisory Committee (secondary)	
		Signature
Χ	Other committees established by the school or district (list):	
	School Parent Advisory Committee (SPAC)	Signature
	District/School Liaison Team for schools in Program Improvement	

- 4. The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational agency plan.
- 5. This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance.
- 6. This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on Tuesday, June 10, 2014.

Attested:

Paula Hart Rodas, Ed.D.		
Typed Name of School Principal	Signature of School Principal	Date
Yaquelin Amador		
Typed Name of SSC Chairperson	Signature of SSC Chairperson	Date

Centinela Valley Union High School District Educational Services Division

SPSA Annual Evaluation Title I: School-Wide Program

Categorical Programs this year: Title I

SCHOOL: Lawndale High School

YEAR: <u>15-16</u>

School data that supports below responses should be reflected in the Single Plan for Student Achievement

GOAL/Objective from SPSA: (Add rows as necessary to address all of the goals/objectives in your SPSA.)	How <u>effective</u> were the categorical programs in assisting students to improve academic achievement? Please site data to support description.	What were the most significant <u>factors</u> contributing to the success of these programs in improving student achievement?	What changes/ modifications/ additions need to be made next year for the programs (e.g. this goal) supported by categorical funds?
Goal 1: Students shall be taught by highly-qualified teachers. Students will have access to standards-aligned materials. Students will be educated in facilities that are maintained in good repair.	Development and training for teachers, counselors, administration for differentiation and intervention strategies and methods for EL students scoring below proficiency in ELA and math. Hire highly-qualified teachers with subject matter mastery. Ensure equitable access to standards-based course materials for all students aligned to Common Core and state content standards.	Continue to see depth and breadth of offerings	 Support for SAT materials Train AVID teachers in SAT strategies Support AVID program expansion
Goal 2: Students shall have access to the Common Core Standards in English Language Arts (ELA) and Math. Students shall also have access to science and social studies state standards, literacy in science, and technical subjects standards.	Provide professional development. District wide Writing Handbook	Began/expand the use of Writing Handbook in subject areas	PD on using writing handbook Follow up Coaching on Integrated Math
Goal 3: Increase parent and community engagement.	Educate Lawndale parents on how to foster a positive educational environment for their children both at home and at school. Increase the depth of and frequency by which parents are informed of student academic progress and need for	Hired Community Liaison Developing Parent Center Coffee with Principal	Add computers, copier, fax, scanner, poster printer, and supplies for parents who need assistance with completing school processes.

GOAL/Objective from SPSA: (Add rows as necessary to address all of the goals/objectives in your SPSA.)	How <u>effective</u> were the categorical programs in assisting students to improve academic achievement? Please site data to support description.	What were the most significant <u>factors</u> contributing to the success of these programs in improving student achievement?	What changes/ modifications/ additions need to be made next year for the programs (e.g. this goal) supported by categorical funds?
	intervention. Frequently inform students and parents of college and postsecondary career opportunities. Increase frequency and varied types of communication to parents regarding school information.		
Goal 4: Increase student performance in standardized tests.	Increase targeted student enrollment in English/Language Arts, reading, and math intervention classes for long-term EL students. Increase pass rate of 11th grade SBAC by 4% in Math and 4% in ELA for 2015/2016 school year. Increase number of students passing AP Exams administered by the College Board	Shmoop online review, Collegeboard Review matierials, Supplemental review materials, Teacher PD at Summer Institutes AP Parent Info Night, increased AP offerings (AP Stats, AP Spanish Lit returned), subsidizing AP fee	Increase publicity for student and parent awareness of AP review sessions and resources through printed flyers and mailers.
Goal 5: Pupil Engagement: Increase student attendance rates while decreasing chronic absenteeism rates. Also, increase high school graduation rates.	Maintain and improve small learning communities/academies in which students explore the wide variety of career options through hands-on, problem-based, project-based, critical thinking, and rigorous real- world application. (AMA, BCA, MSA, ASLA, AVID, 9th grade house) Reward students for monthly perfect attendance with Cardinal cash. Increase the attendance rate by 2% for the 2015/16 school year. Increase the graduation rate by 2% for the 2015/16 school year.	Celebrate monthly perfect attendance, reward weekly/monthy perfect attendance, reporting absences instructions on website SART/SARB chronically absent students, home visits, student/parent conferences, SST, FARS	
Goal 6: Increase the sense of safety and school connectedness among students, parents, and teachers.	Assess how safe 9th graders feel on the Lawndale High School campus by giving the California Healthy Kids Paper Survey in	use of restorative justice practices (peer mediation, community conferences), students encouraged to self report	Train staff and students on dealing with difficult and challenging situations.

GOAL/Objective from SPSA: (Add rows as necessary to address all of the goals/objectives in your SPSA.)	How <u>effective</u> were the categorical programs in assisting students to improve academic achievement? Please site data to support description.	What were the most significant <u>factors</u> contributing to the success of these programs in improving student achievement?	What changes/ modifications/ additions need to be made next year for the programs (e.g. this goal) supported by categorical funds?
	January. Assess how safe teachers feel on the Lawndale High School campus by giving the California Healthy Kids Electronic Survey (teacher version) in January. Implement an anti-bullying campaign for 9th and 10th graders in February. Provide a healthy-choices education	situations before they escalate, mediators report potential issues they obsreve, limit suspensions to need for student safety, FARS, SBC, drug counseling referrals, (as of 1/14/16 we have 11 suspensions, last year we at this same point we had 31) use of restorative justice practices, limit suspensions to need for student safety	
Goal 7: Increase course offerings in a broad course of study that includes various subject areas.	Provide more industry-relevant college and career readiness skills into more content courses. Offer more high school level elective courses. Promote development of small learning communities and their curricula.	Survey staff in the fall for new courses to be added to the master schedule for following school year. Work with teachers to complete course outline, a-g application, and/or AP course syllabus (if applicable). Hold electives course fair in the spring to recruit and raise student awareness for AP, honors, and elective courses coming up in the next school year.	
Goal 8: Increase student performance on A-G Completion and College readiness indicators.	Strategic placement of student enrollment in English/Language Arts, reading, and math intervention classes. Development and training for teachers, counselors, administration in intervention strategies and methods for students scoring below proficiency in ELA and math. Grading Practices specifically focused on giving effective feedback to students on their performance. Explore various bell schedules and course placements in order to maximize instructional time.	8 period bell schedule; increased focus on student supports through RTI; PIQE; college presentations and workshops Back on Track parent-student meetings; implement 8 period bell schedule; UCLA SHAPE tutors; E2020 credit recovery program; grad checks, before/after school tutoring with teachers,	Supplies and/or food provided for parents and students during back on track meetings, college info nights, financial aid info nights, and college application workshops.

^{1.} Describe professional development activities for meeting the goals of you SPSA.

In order to meet the above goals, Lawndale HS general education, special education, and English language development teachers of Lawndale HS participated in the following professional development activities:

- a. Direct Interactive Instruction (DII)
- b. Positive Behavior Intervention and Support (PBIS)
- c. Focus walks
- d. Collaboration time provide opportunities for certificated staff to focus on assessment data to guide instruction; engagement, active learning, checking for understanding and research-based best practices. Instructional teams will conduct data analysis of assessments (including formative benchmarks, CST, CAHSEE, and grade analysis to provide opportunities for instructional improvement for all EL, SED, SWD, African American and Hispanic students.
- e. Illuminate, an online, web based data warehouse system to store, analyze, and report student common assessment results.
- f. ELA Common Core State Standards Professional Development
- g. LACOE workshop: Getting to know the ELD Common Core State Standards
- h. AVID Summer Institute for implementation of school wide AVID program
- i. Link Crew training
- j. Co-Teaching professional development
- k. Beginning Teacher Support and Assessment (BTSA); a state program that supports new teachers with a coaching/mentor model.
- 2. Describe all parent education and involvement activities.
- a. Parent Institute for Quality Education (PIQE): through 8 week of on-site workshops parents learn about how grades are used for college admittance; what classes are important and needed for children planning to attend college; how to navigate the school system, and how to become an active participant and volunteer in the school community.
- b. English Language Advisory Council (ELAC) meetings
- c. Academy Orientation: Biomedical(BCA), Marine Science (MSA), Media Arts (AMA), and Advancement Via Individual Determination (AVID) Academies-meet with students and parents during orientation to discuss academy student expectations, progress plans, and intervention strategies for success
- d. Freshman Orientation: with explanation of English Language Arts & math placement to incoming 9th grade students & parents
- e. In-house Registration Day-Initial explanation of ELA and math placement test scores to next year's 10th, 11th grade students
- 3. Describe parent input/feedback about categorical programs:

Parent recommendation forms were distributed to members of School Site Council, ELAC, Title I, and SPAC/DPAC to solicit feedback and input about categorical programs. Online surveys were also sent out to all parents regarding perceptions.

4. Other Evaluation/Assessment Information:

Parent recommendation forms were distributed to members of School Site Council, ELAC, Title I, and SPAC/DPAC to solicit feedback and input about categorical programs. Online surveys were also sent out to all parents regarding perceptions.

Principal's Signature	Date

Appendix

Appendix A – Parent Involvement

Appendix B - Compact

Appendix C – By-Laws

meetings		
Transportation arrangements	As needed	P. Rodas/SSC Chair
Home language survey	August 09	E. Kwong

PART IV ADOPTION

This Lawndale High School Parental Involvement Plan has been developed jointly with, and agreed on with, parents of children participating in Title I program, as evidenced by meeting minutes.

The Parent Involvement Plan was updated and approved by Lawndale High School SSC on 10/21/2015 and will be in effect for the period of one school year. The school will distribute this Parent Involvement Plan to all parents of participating Title I children and make it available to the community on or before 1/30/16.

Title 1 Student Parent Compact Lawndale High School

Lawndale High School and the parents and students participating in its academic program activities and services are funded by Title1, part A of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA). The students of Lawndale High School agree that this compact outlines how students, parents and supporting staff will share in the responsibility for high level academic achievement through a partnership of open communication and support. This school parent compact is in effect during the 2015 -2016 school year.

REQUIRED SCHOOL-PARENT COMPACT PROVISIONS

This Compact will highlight school responsibilities, parent responsibilities and student responsibilities to ensure academic achievement and graduation from Lawndale High school

School Responsibilities Lawndale High School will:

Provide high-quality curriculum and instruction in a supportive and effective learning environment that enables the participating children to meet the State's student academic achievement standards as follows:

- Every class will have a syllabus outlining academic expectations
- Every class will have posted daily focus learning target
- Every class will be student centered, engaging, and will include both student-to-student and teacher-to-student interaction
- The direct interactive instructional methodology will be in evidence in every classroom
- Assessment will be based on the knowledge level acquired by each student
- Students will have ability to make up work at the discretion of every teacher
- Parent teacher conference will be held at ongoing basis as needed to maintain an effective communication with the parent, including but not limited to grade level "Back on Track" nights each semester
- · The school will provide parents with a formal progress report every five weeks
- The school will provide parents an online portal in which they can view their child academic progress and attendance on a daily basis
- Parents will be provided the opportunity to observe their child in any classroom of their choice
- Parents will be provided the opportunity and encouraged to volunteer at Lawndale HS
- · A Community Liaison will be utilized to facilitate parent involvement through the Lawndale Parent Center

Parent Responsibilities

We, as parents, will support our children's learning in the following ways:

- Ensuring that their children arrive on time for instruction daily
- Monitoring attendance through a parent online portal
- Making sure that homework is completed (utilized student planners to check assignments)
- Monitoring amount of television their children watch
- Monitoring video games and cell phone use
- Participating, as appropriate, in decisions relating to my children's education
- Promoting positive use of my child's extracurricular time while remaining mindful of their scholastic responsibilities
- Staying informed about my child's education and communicating with the school by promptly reading all notices from the school or the school district either received by my child or by mail and responding, as appropriate
- Serving, to the extent possible, on policy advisory groups, such as being on the PTO, School Site Council, English Learner Advisory Council, or other school advisory or policy groups
- Support school decisions based on the best interest of their child
- Have the expectation that their child will achieve A-G requirements
- Volunteering in my child's school

Student Responsibilities

We, as students, will share the responsibility to improve our academic achievement and achieve the State's high standards. Specifically, we will:

- Take classes at each grade level that will fulfill A-G requirement
- Attend and be prepared to learn in every class
- Complete all homework, classwork, and project assignments on time
- Be socially responsible and empathetic towards others
- Show respect for self, school, and the community
- Help create an environment that is positive and productive for the community by exhibits ROCKS aligned behaviors
- Maintain a focus on the credits needed for graduation (220)
- Understand the meaning of the graduation profile
- Uphold to the mission and vision of Lawndale High School

School	Parent	Student	
Date	Date	Date	

Appendix F: SSC Bylaws

LAWNDALE HIGH SCHOOL SITE COUNCIL BY-LAWS

Article I - Name

The name of this organization shall be the Lawndale High School Site Council, hereinafter referred to as the SSC.

Article II - Purpose and Duties

The purpose of this council shall be to:

- A. Analyze and evaluate the academic achievement of all students in the school.
- B. Annually review the Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) and establish a site budget that is consistent with the Education Code. When necessary, make modifications in the plan and establish new school site needs and priorities.
 - 1. Obtain recommendations for, and review of, the proposed SPSA from all school advisory committees.
 - 2. Develop and approve the SPSA and related expenditures in accordance with all state and federal laws and regulations.
 - 3. Recommend the SPSA and expenditures to the governing board for approval.
 - 4. Provide ongoing review of the implementation of the SPSA with the principal, teachers, and other school staff members
 - 5. Make modifications to the SPSA whenever the need arises.
 - 6. Submit the modified SPSA for governing board approval whenever a material change (as defined in district governing board policy) is made in planned activities or related expenditures.
- C. Take other actions as required by the Education Code and district policy such as:
 - 1. Assist in securing the support and services of parents, teachers, staff, and students.
 - 2. Promote a better understanding of the school educational programs.
 - 3. Develop an awareness of the citizenry to the overall needs of the school and district.

Article III - Membership

Section A: Composition

The SSC shall be composed of 12 members, selected by their peers, as follows:

- 4 Classroom teachers
- 1 Other school staff members
- 3 Parents or community members
- 3 Students
- Principal

SSC members chosen to represent parents may be employees of the school district so long as they are not employed at this school.

Section B: Term of Office

SSC members shall be elected for 2 year terms. Half, or the nearest approximation thereof, of each representative group shall be elected during odd years, and the remaining number elected during even years. At the first regular meeting of the SSC, each member's current term of office shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.

Section C: Election of New Members

Election of new members shall take place during early fall of each school year. Notices and nomination forms in the major languages represented at the school will be sent to all parents, teachers, staff and students to solicit nominations, including self-nominations for available vacancies. Nomination forms will also be available in the school office. Oral and written announcements detailing the SSC nomination and election process, role of the SSC, and site plan development will be distributed in a four-week period prior to the end of September to notify the entire school community prior to the election. One election ballot per parent or legal guardian will be made available on site during a week long polling time on campus. Parent voters will be considered registered and eligible to vote when they are matched to a class roster of students. In a similar manner, all staff members and students will receive one ballot to elect their representatives. Ballots shall be placed in a locked, secure box until counted by two neutral persons in public view at a duly notices SSC meeting. Nominees will be elected in descending order according to the criteria of highest number of votes. An election will not be necessary if the number of nominations do not exceed the number of openings on the council. A run-off vote will be taken as soon as feasible to break any ties. The results shall be recorded in the SSC minutes and the ballots retained for the record in the event of a dispute. The above procedures will apply only during an "election year", meaning that one or more members of the council have served their two-year term.

Section D: Voting Rights

Each member is entitled to one vote and may cast that vote on any matter submitted to a vote of the SSC. Absentee ballots shall not be permitted.

Section E: Termination of Membership

The SSC may, by an affirmative vote of two-thirds of all its members, suspend or expel a member. Any elected member may terminate his or her membership by submitting a written letter of resignation to the Y. Amador.

Section F: Transfer of Membership

Membership on the SSC may not be assigned or transferred.

Section G: Vacancy

Any vacancy on the SSC occurring during the term of a duly elected member shall be filled by a new member selected in an appropriate manner (e.g., regular elections; appointment of the SSC for the period of time until the next regular election; or the seating of a previously elected alternate member to fill the remainder of the term of the vacant seat).

Section H: Code of Conduct

Each elected member of the SSC shall adhere to this code of conduct:

- Attend noticed meetings regularly.
- Follow state law and guidance and CVUHSD Board policy in the development of the site plan.
- Follow the SSC bylaws.
- Assess consensus of the people who elected them with a method that has been discussed at an SSC meeting in the development of the site plan.
- Conduct all SSC business in a courteous and professional manner.

Article IV - Officers

Section A: Officers

The officers of the SSC shall be a chairperson, vice-chairperson, secretary, and other officers the SSC may deem desirable.

The chairperson shall:

- Preside at all meetings of the SSC
- Sign all letters, reports, and other communications of the SSC
- Perform all duties incident to the office of the chairperson
- Have other such duties as are prescribed by the SSC

The vice-chairperson shall:

- · Represent the chairperson in assigned duties
- Substitute for the chairperson in his or her absence

The secretary shall:

- Keep minutes of all regular and special meetings of the SSC
- Transmit true and correct copies of the minutes of such meetings to members of the SSC and to the following other persons: Hatha Parrish
- Provide all notices in accordance with these bylaws
- Be custodian of the records of the SSC
- Keep a register of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of each member of the SSC, the chairpersons of school advisory committees, and others with whom the SSC has regular dealings, as furnished by those persons
- Perform other such duties as are assigned by the chairperson or the SSC

Section B: Election and Terms of Office

The officers shall be elected annually at the Title I meeting of the SSC and shall serve for one year, or until each successor has been elected

Section C: Removal of Officers

Officers may be removed from office by a two-thirds vote of all the members.

Section D: Vacancy

A vacancy in any office shall be filled at the earliest opportunity by a special election of the SSC for the remaining portion of the term of office.

Article V - Committees

Section A: Subcommittees

The SSC may establish and abolish subcommittees of its own membership to perform duties as shall be prescribed by the SSC. At least one member representing teachers and one member representing parents shall make up the subcommittee. No subcommittee may exercise the authority of the SSC.

Section B: Other Standing and Special Committees

The SSC may establish and abolish standing or special committees with such composition to perform such duties as shall be prescribed by the SSC. No such committee may exercise the authority of the SSC.

Section C: Membership

Unless otherwise determined by the SSC, the Y. Amador shall appoint members of standing or special committees. A vacancy on a committee shall be filled by appointment made by the chairperson.

Section D: Terms of Office

The SSC shall determine the terms of office for members of a committee.

Section E: Rules

Each committee may adopt rules for its own government not inconsistent with these bylaws or rules adopted by the SSC, or policies of the district governing board.

Section F: Quorum

A majority of the members of the committee shall constitute a quorum, unless otherwise determined by the SSC. The act of a majority of the members present shall be the act of the committee, provided a quorum is in attendance.

Article VI - Meetings of the SSC

Section A: Meetings

The SSC shall meet regularly on the 3rd Thursday school day of each month. Special meetings of the SSC may be called by the chairperson or by a majority vote of the SSC.

Section B: Place of Meetings

The SSC shall hold its regular meetings at a facility provided by the school, unless such a facility accessible to the public, including handicapped persons, is unavailable. Alternate meeting places may be determined by the chairperson or by majority vote of the SSC.

Section C: Notice of Meetings

Written public notice shall be given of all meetings at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting. Changes in the established date, time, or location shall be given special notice. All meetings shall be publicized in the following venues: Teacher Bulletin Board, Web Page, and Student Bulletin Board.

All required notices shall be delivered to the SSC and committee members no less than 72 hours and no more than 4 days in advance of the meeting, personally or by mail (or by e-mail).

Section D: Quorum

The act of a majority of the members present shall be the act of the SSC, provided a quorum is in attendance, and no decision may otherwise be attributed to the SSC. A majority of the members of the SSC shall constitute a quorum.

Section E: Conduct of Meetings

Meetings of the SSC shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of order established by California *EC* Section 3147(c), and with *Robert's Rules of Order* or an adaptation thereof approved by the SSC.

Section F: Meetings Open to the Public

All meetings of the SSC, and of committees established by the SSC, shall be open to the public. Notice of such meetings shall be provided in accordance with Section C of this article.

Article VII - Amendments

An amendment of these bylaws may be made at any regular meeting of the SSC by a vote of two-thirds of the members present. Written notice of the proposed amendment must be submitted to SSC members at least 5 days prior to the meeting at which the amendment is to be considered for adoption.

Appendix I: Parental Involvement Plan and Parent-School Compact

Lawndale High School Parent Involvement Plan

The Mission of Lawndale High School is:

To teach all students to become lifelong learners through individual development of attitudes, skills, knowledge, and responsibility that is essential to academic achievement in school and society. Lawndale High School recognizes the value in shared responsibility of student achievement. Parental involvement in a child's education is the most consistent indicator of whether the child is successful in school.

To Fulfill our Mission:

We are committed to a quality educational program that values parental involvement. We recognize that parents play a very important role in their children's education and take every opportunity to foster the relationship between school, parent, and child. Lawndale High School prides itself in our dedication to our students, families, community, and to lifelong learning

Lawndale High School recognizes that:

- A child's education is a responsibility shared by the school and family during the entire time the child spends in school.
- To support the goal of the school to educate all students effectively, the school and parents must work as knowledgeable partners.
- Although parents are diverse in culture, language, and needs, they are an integral component of a school's ability to provide for the educational success of their children.
- Engaging parents is essential to improving student achievement.
- The school shall foster and support active parental involvement.

PART I. SCHOOL PARENT INVOLVEMENT PLAN REQUIRED COMPONENTS

A. Lawndale High School shall jointly develop/revise with parents the school parent involvement plan and distribute it to parents of participating children and make available the parent involvement plan to the local community.

Activity	Date Due	Contact person
Distribute draft plan to parent		P. Rodas (or Y. Amador)
involvement committee and staff		
Parent involvement meeting to review		P. Rodas
draft		
Final draft		P. Rodas/Y. Amador
Adopt final draft		P. Rodas
Include final plan in school newsletter,		P. Rodas
school website, information packets		
Submit final plan to District office		P. Rodas/Y. Amador

B. Convene an annual meeting, at a convenient time, to which all parents of participating children shall be invited and encouraged to attend, to inform parents of their school's participation under this part and to explain the requirements of this part, and the right of the parents to be involved;

Activity	Date Due	Contact person
Back to School Night – (informational	First month of each school year	E. Kwong
introduction only)		
Title I Public Meetings		P. Rodas

C. Offer a flexible number of meetings, such as meetings in the morning or evening, and may provide, with funds provided under this part, transportation, child care, or home visits, as such services relate to parental involvement;

Activity	Date Due	Contact person
Title 1 Informational Packets send	August (summer mailer)	B. Watson (child welfare and
home with students		attendance) E. Kwong/ M. Becerra
		(principal's secretary)
Written policies included in the	August (summer mailer)	B. Watson/E. Kwong/M. Becerra
student handbook		
Information distributed during BTSN	September each school year	E. Kwong
Follow up to parents who do not	October 1-31 each school year	E. Kwong/M. Becerra
attend the conference		
Attendance sheets maintained	October each school year	M. Becerra
PTSA Meetings	Monthly	PTSA president
Academy Parent Nights		academy coordinators

D. Involve parents, in an organized, ongoing, and timely way, in the planning, review, and improvement of the school plan.

Activity	Date Due	Contact person
Parent Involvement meeting to review		P. Rodas/E. Kwong
and revise plan		
SSC Meetings		P. Rodas/SSC Chair

- E. Provide parents of participating children
 - a. timely information about programs under this part;
 - b. a description and explanation of the curriculum in use at the school, the forms of academic assessment used to measure student progress, and the proficiency levels students are expected to meet; and
 - c. if requested by parents, opportunities for regular meetings to formulate suggestions and to participate, as appropriate, in decisions relating to the education of their children, and respond to any such suggestions as soon as practically possible.

Activity	Date Due	Contact person
Back to School Night	First month of each school year	E. Kwong
On-Going Website News and Information	Bi-monthly	E. Kwong
Parent Information/packets	August registration	E. Kwong

distributed (contains contact info., web page addresses, tips on how to be involved in your child's education,		
curriculum information) Membership drive for PTSA	First month of each school year	PTSA President
Volunteer surveys sent to parents	August-October each school year	E. Kwong/C. Klein (activities director
volunteer surveys sent to parents	August-October each school year	and statistics teacher)
Volunteer log maintained and		E. Kwong
distributed to teachers		

F. If the school wide program plan is not satisfactory to the parents of participating children, submit any parent comments on the plan when the school makes the plan available to the local educational agency.

Activity	Date Due	Contact person
Final plan posted to public and		E. Kwong
available for parent comments		

PART II REQUIRED SHARED RESPONSIBILITIES FOR HIGH STUDENT ACADEMIC ACHIEVEMENT

As a component of the school-level parent involvement plan, Lawndale High School shall jointly develop with parents for all children served under this part a school-parent compact that outlines how parents, the entire school staff, and students will share the responsibility for improved student academic achievement.

- Conduct Back to School Night Presentations annually (at a minimum), during which the compact shall be discussed as the compact relates to the individual child's achievement;
- Provide frequent reports to parents on their children's progress; and
- Provide parents with reasonable access to staff, opportunities to volunteer and participate in their child's class and observation of classroom activities.

Activity	Date Due	Contact person
BTSN and Open House	September and April of each school	E. Kwong
	year	
Sign in sheets to file	September and April of each school	E. Kwong
	year	
School parent compact signed	By 10/01 of each school year	All
Contact all parents that did not attend	By October 31 st of each school year	E. Kwong/ M. Becerra
conferences to sign school parent		
compact		
School parent compact available in	August registration	B. Watson /E. Kwong/M. Becerra
handbook		
Access to grades using Powerschool	All year	All
5 week progress reports	4 times per year	All
Teacher contact info is published on	First week of school	E. Kwong
school website		
Chaperone field trips	All year	All
PTSA membership drive	First month of school	PTSA President
Volunteer surveys distributed	Back to School Night	E. Kwong
Volunteer list distributed to teachers	By 10/1 each school year	E. Kwong
Serve on committees as needed	On-going	All

BUILDING CAPACITY REQUIREMENTS FOR INVOLVEMENT

To ensure effective involvement of parents and to support a partnership among the school involved, parents, and the community to improve student academic achievement, each school and local educational agency assisted under this part –

a. Shall provide assistance to the parents of children served by the school or local educational agency, as appropriate, in understanding such topics as the State's academic content standards and State student academic achievement standards, State and local academic assessments, the requirements of this part, and how to monitor a child's progress and work with educators to improve the achievement of their children;

Activity	Date Due	Contact person
Curriculum information sent home in August mailer	Registration through first week of school	B. Watson
5 week progress reports	Every 5 weeks	All
Back to School Night	September 2013	E. Kwong
Open House	April 2014	E. Kwong
Parent Education Workshops	On-going as needed	E. Kwong/V. Hernandez
Powerschool	Daily	E. Kwong
Parent teacher conferences	On-going	All

b. Shall provide materials and training to help parents to work with their children to improve their children's achievement, such as literacy training and using technology, as appropriate, to foster parental involvement;

Activity	Date Due	Contact person
School news posted on school website	Bi-monthly	E. Kwong
Powerschool training	Once per semester	E. Kwong
ELAC Parent Workshops	Monthly	E. Kwong/R. Munoz (EL coordinator)
EL services	Daily	V. Hernandez
NCLB Title I meeting	12/3/12	E. Kwong/P. Rodas/Y. Amador

c. Shall educate teachers, pupil services personnel, principals, and other staff, with the assistance of parents, in the value and utility of contributions of parents, and in how to reach out to, communicate with, and work with parents as equal partners, implement and coordinate parent programs, and build ties between parents and the school;

Activity	Date Due	Contact person
Parent Involvement Professional	Prior to the start of school year	E. Kwong/ V. Hernandez
Development (at least 2 hrs teachers/3 hrs admin)		
Website containing parent involvement information	Monthly	E. Kwong/V. Hernandez

d. Shall ensure that information related to school and parent programs, meetings, and other activities is sent to the parents of participating children in a format and, to the extent practicable, in a language parents can understand;

Activity	Date Due	Contact person
Notice regarding specific events sent home using Connect Ed	As needed	E. Kwong/V. Hernandez
Translations of text	As needed	E. Kwong/V. Hernandez
School website	As needed	E. Kwong/V. Hernandez

f. Shall provide such other reasonable support for parental involvement activities under this as parents may request.

Activity	Date Due	Contact person
Connect Ed	As needed	E. Kwong
Powerschool	As needed	E. Kwong
Website	As needed	E. Kwong

- g. May involve parents in the development of training for teachers, principals, and other educators to improve the effectiveness of such training;
- h. May provide necessary literacy training from funds received under this part if the district has exhausted all other reasonably available sources of funding for such training;
- i. May pay reasonable and necessary expenses associated with local parental involvement activities, including transportation and child care costs, to enable parents to participate in school-related meetings and training sessions;
- j. May train parents to enhance the involvement of other parents;
- k. May arrange school meetings at a variety of times, or conduct in-home conferences between teachers or other educators, who work directly with participating children, with parents who are unable to attend such conferences at school, in order to maximize parental involvement and participation;
- I. May adopt and implement model approaches to improving parental involvement;
- m. May establish a district parent advisory council to provide advice on all matters related to parental involvement in programs supported under this section;
- n. May develop appropriate roles for community-based organizations and businesses in parent involvement activities; and

PART III ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS

In carrying out the parental involvement requirements of this part, districts and schools, to the extent practicable, shall provide full opportunities for the participation of parents with children with limited English proficiency, parents with children with disabilities, and parents of migratory children, including providing information and school reports in a format and, to the extent practicable, in a language such parents can understand.

Activity	Date Due	Contact person
Translators at conferences and	As needed	P. Rodas

meetings		
Transportation arrangements	As needed	P. Rodas/SSC Chair
Home language survey	August 09	E. Kwong

PART IV ADOPTION

This Lawndale High School Parental Involvement Plan has been developed jointly with, and agreed on with, parents of children participating in Title I program, as evidenced by meeting minutes.

The Parent Involvement Plan was updated and approved by Lawndale High School SSC on 10/21/2015 and will be in effect for the period of one school year. The school will distribute this Parent Involvement Plan to all parents of participating Title I children and make it available to the community on or before 1/30/16.

Title 1 Student Parent Compact Lawndale High School

Lawndale High School and the parents and students participating in its academic program activities and services are funded by Title1, part A of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA). The students of Lawndale High School agree that this compact outlines how students, parents and supporting staff will share in the responsibility for high level academic achievement through a partnership of open communication and support. This school parent compact is in effect during the 2015 -2016 school year.

REQUIRED SCHOOL-PARENT COMPACT PROVISIONS

This Compact will highlight school responsibilities, parent responsibilities and student responsibilities to ensure academic achievement and graduation from Lawndale High school

School Responsibilities Lawndale High School will:

Provide high-quality curriculum and instruction in a supportive and effective learning environment that enables the participating children to meet the State's student academic achievement standards as follows:

- Every class will have a syllabus outlining academic expectations
- Every class will have posted daily focus learning target
- Every class will be student centered, engaging, and will include both student-to-student and teacher-to-student interaction
- The direct interactive instructional methodology will be in evidence in every classroom
- Assessment will be based on the knowledge level acquired by each student
- Students will have ability to make up work at the discretion of every teacher
- Parent teacher conference will be held at ongoing basis as needed to maintain an effective communication with the parent, including but not limited to grade level "Back on Track" nights each semester
- · The school will provide parents with a formal progress report every five weeks
- The school will provide parents an online portal in which they can view their child academic progress and attendance on a daily basis
- Parents will be provided the opportunity to observe their child in any classroom of their choice
- Parents will be provided the opportunity and encouraged to volunteer at Lawndale HS
- · A Community Liaison will be utilized to facilitate parent involvement through the Lawndale Parent Center